Edgar Filing: COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/ - Form DEF 14A

COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/
Form DEF 14A
June 27, 2003

SCHEDULE 14A
(RULE 14A-101)
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN PROXY STATEMENT
SCHEDULE 14A INFORMATION

PROXY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 14 (a)
OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Filed by the Registrant [X]
Filed by a Party other than the Registrant [ ]
Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Proxy Statement

[ 1] Confidential, for use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule
l4a-6(e) (2))

[X] Definitive Proxy Statement
[ 1] Definitive Additional Materials
[ ] Soliciting Material Under Rule 14a-12

COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)
Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box) :
[X] No fee required

[ ] Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i) (4) and

0-11.

(1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction
applies:

(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction
computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (Set forth the
amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it
was determined) :

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

(5) Total fee paid:

[ 1] Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.

[ ] Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act
Rule 0-11(a) (2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee



Edgar Filing: COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/ - Form DEF 14A

was paild previously. Identify the previous filing by registration
statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.

(1) Amount previously paid:

(2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
(3) Filing Party:

(4) Date Filed:

COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

68149 Highway 231 South
P.O. Box 1000
Blountsville, Alabama 35031

June 24, 2003

To the Stockholders of
Community Bancshares, Inc.:

In connection with the Annual Meeting of stockholders of Community
Bancshares, Inc. to be held at 10:00 a.m., Central Time, on Thursday, July 24,
2003, at the Main Club House at Limestone Springs, 3000 Colonial Drive, Oneonta,
Alabama, enclosed are a Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, proxy card and
Proxy Statement containing information about your company and matters to be
considered at the Annual Meeting. We encourage you to read them.

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person.
Please sign, date and mark the enclosed proxy card and return it in the enclosed
postage-prepaid envelope to ensure that your shares are voted at the Annual
Meeting. This will not limit your rights to vote your shares in person or attend
the Annual Meeting.

We are enthusiastic about the future and appreciate your continued
support. We look forward to seeing you on July 24.

Sincerely yours,
Patrick M. Frawley
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and President
PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND PROMPTLY MAIL IT IN

THE POSTAGE-PAID RETURN ENVELOPE FURNISHED FOR THAT PURPOSE, WHETHER OR NOT YOU
PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING.

COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
The Annual Meeting of the stockholders of Community Bancshares, Inc.
(the "Company") will be held at the Main Club House at Limestone Springs, 3000
Colonial Drive, Oneonta, Alabama on Thursday, July 24, 2003 at 10:00 a.m.,

Central Time, for the following purposes:

1. To elect Roy B. Jackson, Stacey W. Mann and Jimmie Trotter
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(or, in the event that any or all of the foregoing are unable
to serve, such other nominee(s) designated by the Company's
Board of Directors) as Class I directors;

2. To remove Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. as a Class III director of
the Company; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before
the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof, but which is
not now anticipated.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on June 9, 2003
as the record date for determining stockholders of the Company entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting and any adjournment of the Annual
Meeting.

Your attention is directed to the attached Proxy Statement for further
information with respect to the matters to be acted upon at the Annual Meeting.

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting. WHETHER OR NOT
YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING IN PERSON, PLEASE COMPLETE, DATE AND SIGN
THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND RETURN IT PROMPTLY IN THE POSTAGE-PAID RETURN
ENVELOPE ENCLOSED FOR THAT PURPOSE. The person giving the enclosed proxy may
revoke it at any time before it is voted by voting in person at the Annual
Meeting or by delivering a later executed proxy or a written revocation to the
Corporate Secretary of the Company, provided such later executed proxy or
revocation is actually received by the Corporate Secretary of the Company before
the vote of stockholders at the Annual Meeting.

If you need assistance in completing your proxy card, please call me at
(205) 429-1001.

THE COMPANY'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE "FOR" APPROVAL OF
ITEMS 1 AND 2 ABOVE.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

William H. Caughran, Jr.
Secretary

Blountsville, Alabama
June 24, 2003

COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.

68149 Highway 231 South
P.O. Box 1000
Blountsville, Alabama 35031

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD JULY 24, 2003

INTRODUCTION
This Proxy Statement is furnished to stockholders of Community

Bancshares, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the
solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of the Company for use at the
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Annual Meeting of stockholders to be held July 24, 2003, and at any adjournments
thereof (the "Annual Meeting"), for the purposes set forth in the accompanying
Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The executive offices of the Company are located at 68149 Highway 231
South, P.O. Box 1000, Blountsville, Alabama 35031. This Proxy Statement is being
mailed to stockholders of the Company on or about June 24, 2003.

STOCKHOLDERS ENTITLED TO VOTE

Each holder of record of the Company's common stock, $.10 par value per
share ("Common Stock"), as of the close of business on June 9, 2003, will be
entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Each stockholder will be entitled to one
vote on each proposal for each share of Common Stock held as of such date. At
the close of business on June 9, 2003, there were approximately 4,806,553 shares
of Common Stock issued and outstanding, which were held by approximately 2,315
stockholders of record. The Company's stock transfer books will not be closed
and shares of Common Stock may be transferred subsequent to the record date,
although all votes must be cast in the names of stockholders of record as of the
record date.

PROXIES

If the enclosed proxy card is properly executed and received by the
Company before or at the Annual Meeting, the shares of Common Stock represented
thereby will be voted as specified in the proxy by the persons designated in
such proxy. If no specification is made in the proxy, shares of Common Stock
represented by the proxy will be voted (1) "FOR" the election of the nominees
for directors listed in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, (2) "FOR" the removal of Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. as a Class III
director of the Company, and (3) in accordance with the recommendation of the
Board of Directors as to any other matters which may properly come before the
Annual Meeting. The person giving the enclosed proxy may revoke it at any time
before it is voted by voting in person at the Annual Meeting or by delivering a
later executed proxy or a written revocation to the Corporate Secretary of the
Company, provided such later executed proxy or revocation is actually received
by the Corporate Secretary of the Company before the vote of stockholders at the
Annual Meeting.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

THIS SOLICITATION IS MADE BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY. THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS URGES THAT YOU EXECUTE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AS
SOON AS POSSIBLE AND RECOMMENDS THAT THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK REPRESENTED BY
THE PROXY BE VOTED "FOR" APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL 1 AND PROPOSAL 2.

The Company will bear the costs associated with this solicitation of
proxies.

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors is not aware of any business to be presented at
the Annual Meeting except as described in the accompanying Notice of Annual
Meeting. If other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is
intended that the persons named on the enclosed proxy card will vote on such
matters in accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.

ANNUAL REPORTS
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COPIES OF THE COMPANY'S 2002 ANNUAL REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS AND ANNUAL
REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2002 ACCOMPANY THIS PROXY
STATEMENT. ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THESE DOCUMENTS WILL BE FURNISHED WITHOUT CHARGE
TO ANY STOCKHOLDER WHO REQUESTS SUCH REPORTS IN WRITING FROM PATRICK M. FRAWLEY,
COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC., P.O. BOX 1000, BLOUNTSVILLE, ALABAMA 35031.

PROPOSAL 1 —-— ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Bylaws of the Company provide for a classified Board of Directors
consisting of three classes, with the three-year term of office of each class
expiring in successive years, and that the number of directors will be fixed
from time to time by the vote of the directors. The current number of directors
has been fixed at 11. The resolution adopted by the Board of Directors fixing
the number of directors provided that the number of directors will automatically
be reduced by one if Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. 1is removed as a director at the
Annual Meeting (see Proposal 2 below). The terms of the Class I directors expire
at the Annual Meeting. The terms of the Class II and Class III directors will
expire in 2004 and 2005, respectively. Each of the Class I directors elected at
the Annual Meeting will serve three-year terms expiring at the 2006 annual
meeting of stockholders and until his respective successor is elected and
qualified. A director of the Company is elected by the affirmative vote of the
holders of a plurality of the shares of Common Stock present, in person or by
proxy, at the Annual Meeting and entitled to vote.

The Board of Directors has nominated Roy B. Jackson, Stacey W. Mann and
Jimmie Trotter for election as Class I directors to hold office until expiration
of their term and until their successors have been elected and qualified.
Messrs. Jackson and Trotter are currently serving as Class I directors. Kennon
R. Patterson, Jr., son of the Company's former Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer, Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., also currently serves as a Class I
director, but has not been nominated for another term. The persons named in the
enclosed proxy card will vote for the election of the nominees, Messrs. Jackson,
Mann and Trotter, unless authority to vote for one or more nominees is withheld.
Each nominee has consented to serve as a director if elected. However, if prior
to the Annual Meeting, any person proposed for election as a director is
unavailable to serve or for good cause cannot serve, the shares of all valid
proxies may be voted for the election of such substitute as the members of the
Board of Directors may recommend. The names of the nominees and the directors
who will continue to serve unexpired terms and certain information relating to
them, including the business experience of each during the past five years,
follow.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE
ELECTION OF THE NOMINEES LISTED BELOW AS DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY.

NOMINEES FOR TERMS EXPIRING IN 2006 (CLASS I)

DIRECTOR OF
NAME, AGE AND POSITIONS HELD WITH THE COMPANY PRINCIPA
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COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES SINCE
ROY B. JACKSON (69 1999
Director of the Company, Community Bank, 1lst Community Credit
Corporation; Community Appraisals, Inc., Community Insurance

Corp. and Southern Select Insurance, Inc.

STACEY W. MANN (50) 2003
Director of the Company and Community Bank; President and Chief
Operating Officer of Community Bank

JIMMIE TROTTER (65) 2000
Director of the Company, Community Bank, 1st Community Credit
Corporation, Community Appraisals, Inc., Community Insurance

Corp. and Southern Select Insurance, Inc.

DIRECTORS WITH TERMS EXPIRING IN 2004 (CLASS II)

DIRECTOR OF

NAME, AGE AND POSITIONS HELD WITH THE COMPANY
COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES SINCE

GLYNN DEBTER (68) 1996
Director of the Company, Community Bank, 1st Community Credit
Corporation, Community Appraisals, Inc., Community Insurance
Corp. and Southern Select Insurance, Inc.
JOHN J. LEWIS, JR. (56) 1997
Director of the Company, Community Bank, 1st Community Credit
Corporation, Community Appraisals, Inc., Community Insurance
Corp. and Southern Select Insurance, Inc.
LOY MCGRUDER (62) 1996

Director of the Company.

DIRECTORS WITH TERMS EXPIRING IN 2005 (CLASS III)

DIRECTOR OF

NAME, AGE AND POSITIONS HELD WITH THE COMPANY
COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES SINCE
KENNETH K. CAMPBELL (58) 2003

DURING P

(Retired) Owne
& Garden Cente
Tennessee

President and
Officer of Com
(2003-Present)
President and
Officer of Com
(2001-2003); A
President of C
(1997-2001)
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Alabama
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Director of the Company and Community Bank

PATRICK M. FRAWLEY (52) 2003
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company;
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Community Bank; Chairman
of 1lst Community Credit Corporation, Community Appraisals, Inc.,
Community Insurance Corp. and Southern Select Insurance, Inc.
KENNON R. PATTERSON, SR. (60) 1983
Director of the Company.
MERRITT M. ROBBINS (65) 1996
Director of the Company, Community Bank, 1lst Community Credit
Corporation, Community Appraisals, Inc., Community Insurance
Corp. and Southern Select Insurance, Inc.
Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. is the father of Kennon R. Patterson, Jr., a

Class I director whose term expires at the Annual Meeting upon the election of a
successor.

On January 20, 2003, Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. filed a petition for
protection under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code.

Mr. Mann was previously a director of the Company during 1997 and 1998
and again from June 2001 through February 2002.

Directors of the Company hold office for three-year terms unless they
sooner resign, become disqualified or are removed. The officers of the Company
are elected annually by the directors and serve until their successors are
elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation, removal or
disqualification.

BOARD MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Company held 15 meetings during 2002. To
assist it in its work, the Board of Directors has the following standing
committees: Executive Committee, Nominating Committee, Executive Compensation
Committee, ESOP and Pension Plan Administrative Committee, and Audit Committee.

The membership of the Executive Committee currently consists of Patrick
M. Frawley (Chairman), Merritt Robbins (Vice Chairman), Roy B. Jackson, Loy
McGruder, and Jimmie Trotter. This committee has the authority, to the extent
permitted by law and the Company's governing documents, to exercise all the
powers of the Board of Directors in the management of the business and affairs
of the Company. This committee did not meet during 2002.

The Nominating Committee is currently composed of Glynn Debter
(Chairman), John J. Lewis, Jr. (Vice Chairman) and Loy McGruder. The purpose of

Communications
Inc. (wireless
Birmingham, Al

Chairman, Pres
Executive Offi
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for Bank of Anm
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this committee is to recommend to the Board of Directors nominations for
directors of the Company. This committee met one time in 2002.

The Executive Compensation Committee reviews the compensation of all
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries. Membership of this committee
currently consists of Merritt M. Robbins (Chairman), Jimmie Trotter (Vice
Chairman), Glynn Debter, Roy B. Jackson, John J. Lewis, Jr. and Kennon R.
Patterson, Jr. The Executive Compensation Committee met one time during 2002.

The ESOP and Pension Plan Administrative Committee administers the

Company's pension plan and employee stock ownership plan ("ESOP"). This
committee is currently composed of Patrick M. Frawley (Chairman), John J. Lewis,
Jr. (Vice Chairman), Jimmie Trotter and Merritt Robbins. This committee held two

meetings in 2002.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial and internal operations of
the Company. Members of the Audit Committee are Roy B. Jackson (Chairman), Glynn
Debter, John J. Lewis, Jr. and Jimmie Trotter. This committee met three times
during 2002.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company consists
of four directors, each of whom is "independent" as defined by the listing
standards of the Nasdag Stock Market, Inc. and the applicable rules and
regulations promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Board of Directors of the Company has not
adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee. In fulfilling its
responsibilities, the Audit Committee:

- Met three times during 2002.

- Reviewed and discussed with management the Company's audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002 and
determined that the Company's internal controls were adequate
for preparation of the financial statements.

- Discussed with the Company's independent auditors the
matters required to be discussed under Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61, Communication with Audit Committees.

- Received the written disclosures and the letter from the
Company's independent auditors regarding the auditors'
independence as required by Independence Standards Board
Standard No. 1, and discussed with the Company's independent
auditors their independence.

- Reviewed with management and the Company's independent
auditors the quarterly financial statements of the Company
prior to the filing of the Company's quarterly reports on Form
10-Q in 2002.

One of the Audit Committee's responsibilities is to recommend to the
Company's Board of Directors an independent auditor. The Audit Committee has
recommended Carr, Riggs & Ingram, L.L.C. as the Company's independent auditor
for 2003 (See "Relationship With Independent Public Accountants").
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Based on the Audit Committee's review of the Company's audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002 and its discussions
with management and the Company's independent auditors as described above and in
reliance thereon, the Audit Committee recommended to the Company's Board of
Directors that the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2002 be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2002 for filing with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

By the Audit Committee:
Roy B. Jackson (Chairman) Glynn Debter John J. Lewis, Jr. Jimmie Trotter
DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE

During 2002, all incumbent directors of the Company attended at least
75% of the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and meetings of
the committees of which they were members.

SECTION 16 (a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16 (a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the

"Exchange Act") requires the Company's directors, executive officers and persons
who beneficially own more than 10% of the Common Stock to file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") initial reports of ownership and

reports of changes in ownership of Common Stock. These officers, directors and
stockholders are also required by SEC rules to furnish the Company with copies
of all Section 16(a) reports they file. There are specific dates by which these
reports are to be filed and the Company is required to report in this Proxy
Statement any failure to file reports as required for 2002.

The Company is not aware of any instance during 2002 in which directors
or executive officers of the Company failed to make timely filings required by
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act. The Company has relied on written
representations of its directors and executive officers and copies of the
reports that have been filed in making required disclosures concerning
beneficial ownership reporting.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Community Bank has from time to time made loans to certain of its
directors and executive officers, and members of their immediate families.
Except as noted below, all such loans are made in the ordinary course of
business on substantially the same credit terms, including interest rates and
collateral, as those prevailing for comparable transactions with other persons,
and do not represent more than a normal risk of collection or present other
unfavorable features. Community Bank maintains a program whereby each of its
full-time employees is eligible for a 1% discount in the rate of interest
charged on a loan from Community Bank. Federal banking regulations permit
executive officers of Community Bank to participate in this program. In
addition, Community Bank maintains a program for executive officers and other of
its employees who are required by Community Bank to relocate within its market
area in connection with their employment with Community Bank. Under this
program, each of these employees is eligible for a 5% annual interest rate on
first mortgage real estate loans from Community Bank. The largest aggregate
amount of loans to directors and executive officers of the Company and members
of their immediate families outstanding at any time during 2002 under these two
programs was approximately $2.1 million. As of April 10, 2003, the total
outstanding balance of loans by Community Bank to directors and executive
officers of the Company and members of their immediate families under these two
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programs was approximately $1.1 million.

As of June 9, 2003, Community Bank has outstanding to Kennon R.
Patterson, Sr., a director of the Company, a real-estate loan in the amount of
$5,372,050. During 2002, the highest balance outstanding for this loan was
$5,150,000, and its balance at year end was $5,150,000. The loan bears interest
at 4.25%. On January 20, 2003 Mr. Patterson filed a petition for protection
under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, and this loan is
currently on nonaccrual status.

As of June 9, 2003, Community Bank has outstanding to Hodge Patterson,
former Executive Vice President of Community Bank, a real-estate loan of
$536,376. During 2002, the highest balance outstanding for this loan was
$552,732, and its balance at year end was $540,401. The loan bears interest at
5.00%.

As of June 9, 2003, Community Bank has outstanding to Denny G. Kelly, a
former director of the Company and Community Bank, a real estate loan in the
amount of $299,008. During 2002, the highest balance outstanding for this loan
was $305,402 and its balance at year end was $305,402. The loan bears interest
at 5.5%. During 2002 Community Bank had two additional loans outstanding to Mr.
Kelly. The highest outstanding combined balance of these two loans during 2002
was $677,500 and their combined year end balance was $677,500. As of June 9,
2003 Community Bank has charged off approximately $270,000 in connection with
these two loans and is pursuing collection efforts.

The Company has engaged the accounting firm of Schauer, Taylor, Cox,
Morgan & Fowler, P.C. to perform certain accounting services. Doug Schauer, a
member of the firm, is Kennon R. Patterson, Sr.'s son-in-law. Services performed
by Schauer, Taylor, Cox, Morgan & Fowler, P.C. for the Company in 2002 have been
limited to preparation of the Company's quarterly tax accruals, preparation and
filing the Company's federal and state tax returns, consultation regarding
interpretation and application of accounting standards and EDGAR services in
connection with the company's filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Company and its subsidiaries paid Schauer, Taylor, Cox, Morgan &
Fowler, P.C. $102,684 for services rendered during 2002.

In June 2000, Community Bank loaned $1,696,576 to Debter Properties,
LLC, an Alabama limited liability company of which Glynn Debter, a director of
the Company, is a member, to fund the purchase from Community Bank of the real
property in which Community Bank's Boaz, Alabama office was located.
Concurrently with this loan and the purchase of the real property, Community
Bank entered into a lease agreement, as the tenant, with Debter Properties, LLC
to lease back this real property from Debter Properties, LLC. On May 31, 2002
Community Bank sold its Boaz, Alabama office to Peoples Bank of North Alabama
which assumed the loan to Debter Properties, LLC and Community Bank's
obligations under the lease.

At December 31, 2002, the total outstanding balance of indebtedness
incurred by the ESOP to purchase shares of Common Stock was approximately
$2,083,342. This indebtedness, which is owed to a third party and is secured by
a pledge of 148,972 shares of Common Stock that have not been allocated by the
ESOP, 1is guaranteed by the Company.
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
BACKGROUND

At a meeting of Community Bank's Board of Directors on June 20, 2000, a
director brought to the attention of the Board the total amount of money
Community Bank had paid subcontractors in connection with the construction of a
new Community Bank office in Guntersville, Alabama. Management of the Company
commenced an investigation of the expenditures. At the request of management,
the architects and subcontractors involved in the construction project made
presentations to the Boards of Directors of the Company and Community Bank on
July 15 and July 18, 2000, respectively. At the July 18, 2000 meeting of the
Board of Directors of Community Bank, another director alleged that Community
Bank had been overcharged by subcontractors on that construction project and
another current construction project. On July 18, 2000, the Boards of Directors
of the Company and Community Bank appointed a joint committee comprised of
independent directors of the Company and of Community Bank to investigate the
alleged overcharges. The joint committee retained legal counsel and an
independent accounting firm to assist the committee in its investigation and has
made its report to the Board of Directors. The directors of Community Bank who
alleged the construction overcharges have made similar charges to bank
regulatory agencies and law enforcement authorities. Management believes that
these agencies and authorities are conducting investigations regarding this
matter.

BENSON DERIVATIVE LITIGATION

On July 21, 2000, three shareholders of the Company, M. Lewis Benson,
Doris E. Benson and John M. Packard, Jr., filed a lawsuit in the state Circuit
Court of Marshall County, Alabama against the Company, Community Bank, certain
directors and officers of the Company and Community Bank, an employee of

Community Bank and two construction subcontractors. The plaintiffs purported to
file the lawsuit as a shareholder derivative action, which relates to the
alleged construction overcharges being investigated by the joint committee of
the Boards of Directors of the Company and Community Bank. The complaint alleges
that the directors, officers and employee named as defendants in the complaint
breached their fiduciary duties, failed to properly supervise officers and
agents of the Company and Community Bank, and permitted waste of corporate
assets by allegedly permitting the subcontractor defendants to overcharge
Community Bank in connection with the construction of two new Community Bank
offices, and to perform the construction work without written contracts,
budgets, performance guarantees and assurances of indemnification. In addition,
the complaint alleges that Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., the Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, breached his fiduciary duties by
allegedly permitting the two named subcontractors to overcharge for work
performed on the two construction projects in exchange for allegedly discounted
charges for work these subcontractors performed in connection with the
construction of Mr. Patterson's residence. The complaint further alleges that
the director defendants knew or should have known of this alleged arrangement
between Mr. Patterson and the subcontractors. The complaint also alleges that
Mr. Patterson, the Community Bank employee and the two subcontractor defendants
made false representations and suppressed information about the alleged
overcharges and arrangement between Mr. Patterson and the subcontractors.

On August 15, 2000, the plaintiffs filed an amended complaint adding
Andy C. Mann, a shareholder of the Company, as a plaintiff and adding a former

11
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director of the Company and Community Bank as a defendant. The amended complaint
generally reiterates the allegations of the original complaint. In addition, the
amended complaint alleges that Community Bank was overcharged on all
construction projects from January 1997 to the present. The amended complaint
also alleges that the defendants breached their fiduciary duties and are guilty
of gross financial mismanagement, including allegations concerning the making or
approval of certain loans and taking allegedly improper actions to conceal the
fact that certain loans were uncollectible. On September 18, 2000 the plaintiffs
filed a second amended complaint. The second amended complaint generally
reiterates the allegations of the original and first amended complaints. In
addition, the second amended complaint alleges that the plaintiffs were
improperly denied their rights to inspect and copy certain records of the
Company and Community Bank. The second amended complaint also alleges that the
directors of the Company abdicated their roles as directors either by express
agreement or as a result of wantonness and gross negligence. The second amended
complaint asserts that the counts involving inspection of corporate records
and director abdication are individual, nonderivative claims. The second amended
complaint seeks, on behalf of the Company, an unspecified amount of compensatory
damages in excess of $1 million, punitive damages, disgorgement of allegedly
improperly paid profits and appropriate equitable relief. Upon motion of the
defendants, the case was transferred to the state Circuit Court in Blount
County, Alabama by order dated September 21, 2000, as amended on October 12,
2000.

On August 24, 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company designated
the directors of the Company who serve on the joint investigative committee as a
special litigation committee to investigate and evaluate the allegations and
issues raised in this lawsuit and to arrive at such decisions and take such
action as the special litigation committee deems appropriate. On June 8, 2001,
the special litigation committee filed its report under seal with the court. On
June 18, 2001, the court entered an order affirming the confidentiality of the
special committee's report. On June 28, 2001, the Company, Community Bank and
various other defendants filed motion with the court to adopt the report of the
special committee, for partial summary judgment and to realign the Company and
Community Bank as plaintiffs in the lawsuit.

Following a hearing on August 29, 2001, the court denied these motions
on November 8, 2001. The court also ruled that the plaintiffs were entitled to
conduct discovery except as it related to one of the subcontractor defendants
and granted the plaintiffs' motion to unseal the report of the special
litigation committee. On November 14, 2001, the directors of the Company filed a
motion for the court to alter, amend or vacate its November 8, 2001 rulings. On
February 7, 2002, the Company and Community Bank filed a motion to disqualify
Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C., the law firm representing the plaintiffs, due to
conflicts of interest. The court held a hearing on these motions on February 22,
2002 and the parties are awaiting a ruling. A tentative settlement of the
lawsuit was announced in November, 2002, but was not finalized. On or about
April 21, 2003 the plaintiffs filed a motion to enforce the tentative
settlement. The court has scheduled a hearing on the fairness of the tentative
settlement for September 5, 2003. One of the subcontractors named as a defendant
in this action, Morgan City Construction, Inc., and its principals, Mr. and Mrs.
Dewey Hamaker, have been tried and convicted in the United States District Court
for the Northern District of Alabama.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of the litigation process, the
Company is unable at this time to predict the outcome of this lawsuit and its
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effect on the Company's financial condition and results of operations.
Regardless of the outcome, however, this lawsuit could be costly, time-consuming
and a diversion of management's attention.

PACKARD DERIVATIVE LITIGATION

On April 4, 2003, a group composed of the same plaintiffs as in the
Benson case filed another derivative action against Sheffield Electrical
Contractors, Inc., Steve Sheffield, Jay Bolden, Dudley, Hopton-Jones, Sims &
Freeman, PLLP, Glynn Debter, Kennon R. Patterson, Jr., Robert O. Summerford,
Jimmie Trotter, John Lewis, Jr., Merritt Robbins, Stacey Mann, B.K. Walker, Jr.,
Denny Kelly, Roy B. Jackson, Loy McGruder and Hodge Patterson. The complaint in
this new derivative suit, besides adding defendants known during but not named
in the Benson lawsuit, is based upon the same allegations as in the Benson case,
but bases its claims against the director-defendants not "for what they did (and
did not do) before learning of the over billing allegations against Patterson
[Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., the Company's former Chairman and CEO] in July 2000"
but instead "only for what they have done (or failed to do) after the filing of
the Benson lawsuit - that is, after they learned of the allegations against
Patterson in July 2000." On May 8, 2003 the Company, Community Bank and most of
the individual defendants filed a motion to transfer the suit from the Circuit
Court of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the Circuit Court of Blount County,
Alabama, or, in the alternative, to dismiss the suit.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of the litigation process, the
Company is unable at this time to predict the outcome of this lawsuit and its
effect on the Company's financial condition and results of operations.
Regardless of the outcome, however, this lawsuit could be costly, time-consuming
and a diversion of management's attention.

CORR FAMILY LITIGATION

On September 14, 2000, another action was filed in the state Circuit
Court of Blount County, Alabama, against the Company, Community Bank and certain
directors and officers of the Company and Community Bank by Bryan A. Corr and
six other related shareholders of the Company alleging that the directors
actively participated in or ratified the misappropriation of corporate income.
The action was not styled as a shareholder derivative action. On January 3,
2001, the defendants filed a motion for summary Jjudgment on the basis that these
claims are derivative in nature and cannot be brought on behalf of individual
shareholders. On May 15, 2003, the court granted defendants' motion and
dismissed the suit. The time for plaintiffs to appeal the dismissal has not yet
expired.

CONSPIRACY LITIGATION

On November 6, 2001 the Company and Community Bank filed a lawsuit in
the United States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama against
Bryan A. Corr, Doris J. Corr, individually and as executrix of the Estate of
R.C. Corr, Jr., Tina M. Corr, Corr, Inc., George M. Barnett, Michael A. Bean,
Michael W. Alred, R. Wayne Washam, M. Lewis Benson, Doris E. Benson, John M.
Packard and Andy Mann seeking damages in excess of $50 million. The complaint
also alleges that, by knowingly making false statements and unsupported
allegations to regulatory and law enforcement authorities and in certain
lawsuits discussed above, the defendants abused the civil legal process to
further their plan to discredit and dislodge the directors and management of the
Company and Community Bank and gain control of those companies. The complaint
further alleges that certain of the defendants who are former directors and/or
executive officers of Community Bank breached their fiduciary duties to
Community Bank by participating in, and taking action in the furtherance of, the
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conspiracy. Finally, the complaint alleges that the defendants failed to make
filings which are required by the Federal securities laws to disclose that the
group 1s acting in concert to acquire control of the Company. The complaint
seeks compensatory and punitive damages as well as an order barring the
defendants from voting their shares of Company stock, purchasing additional
Company stock, soliciting proxies and submitting shareholder proposals for at
least three years.

On December 5, 2001, the Company, Community Bank and R. Wayne Washam
entered into a stipulation pursuant to which Mr. Washam would be dismissed as a
defendant. The court granted the stipulation on December 6, 2001. During the
time between December 3 and December 7, 2001 the other defendants filed various
motions to dismiss, abate or stay the lawsuit. On January 4, 2002, the Company
and Community Bank filed a motion to disqualify Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C.
from representing M. Lewis Benson, Doris E. Benson, John M.
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Packard and Andy Mann due to a conflict of interest. On January 22, 2002
Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C. filed a motion to withdraw from the suit, which
motion was granted by the court on January 24, 2002. On January 29, 2002 the
Company and Community Bank filed an amended complaint to reflect the dismissal
of Wayne Washam as a defendant and to add a claim for defamation against two of
the defendants. As part of a settlement of a lawsuit by Michael Alred and
Michael Bean against Community Bank, Messrs. Alred and Bean were dismissed from
this lawsuit during 2002.

Because of the inherent uncertainties of the litigation process, the
Company is unable at this time to predict the outcome of this lawsuit and its
effect on the Company's financial condition and results of operations.
Regardless of the outcome, however, this lawsuit could be costly, time-consuming
and a diversion of management's attention.

LENDING ACTS LITIGATION

On October 11, 2002, William Alston, Murphy Howard, and Jason Tittle
filed an action against Community Bank, the Company, Holsombeck Motors, Inc.,
Lee Brown d/b/a Alabama Bond & Investigation a/k/a ABI Recovery, Chris Holmes
d/b/a Alabama Bond & Investigation a/k/a ABI Recovery, Regina Holsombeck, Kennon
"Ken" Patterson, Sr., Hodge Patterson, James Timothy "Tim" Hodge, Ernie
Stephens, and the State of Alabama Department of Revenue. The plaintiffs in this
class action allege that Community Bank and others conspired or used
extortionate methods to effect a lending scheme of "churning phantom loans", and
that profits from the scheme were used to secure an interest in and/or to invest
in an enterprise that affects interstate commerce. The allegations state that
Community Bank used various methods to get uneducated customers with fair to
poor credit to sign numerous "phantom loans" when the customers only intended to
sign for one loan. Claims include racketeering activity within the meaning of
the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act of 1970, conspiracy,
spoliation, conversion, negligence, wantonness, outrage, and civil conspiracy.

The Company and Community Bank intend to defend the action vigorously
and currently are conducting discovery to ascertain what substance, if any,
there is to the claims. Although management currently believes that this action
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or
results of operations, regardless of the outcome, the action could be costly,
time consuming, and a diversion of management's attention.

PATTERSON LITIGATION
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On April 9, 2003 Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., former Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, filed an adversary proceeding in the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Alabama in
connection with his petition for protection under Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. Defendants of the adversary proceeding are the Company,
Community Bank, five directors of the Company and Community Bank and the law
firm of Powell, Goldstein, Frazer and Murphy, LLP which represents Community
Bank's Audit Committee. The complaint alleges that the Company breached its
employment agreement with Mr. Patterson by terminating his employment on January
27, 2003 and failed to pay him for compensation and benefits which had allegedly
accrued prior to his termination. The complaint also alleges that Community
Bank, members of Community Bank's Audit Committee, the Audit Committee's
independent counsel and the Company's current Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer conspired to interfere with Mr. Patterson's contract and
business relationship with the Company. The suit seeks damages in excess of $150
million for, among other things, lost compensation and benefits, mental anguish,
and damage to Mr. Patterson's reputation. The Company believes that this lawsuit
is without merit and intends to defend the action vigorously. On May 9, 2003 the
defendants filed a motion to dismiss the suit. Although management currently
believes that this action will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial condition or results of operations, regardless of the
outcome, the action could be costly, time consuming and a diversion of
management's attention.

EMPLOYEE LITIGATION

On May 5, 2003 two former executive officers of the Company and
Community Bank filed separate suits in the Circuit Court of Blount County,

Alabama, against the Company, Community Bank, Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., former
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Community Bank, and a
number of fictitious defendants. Bishop K. Walker, Jr., former Senior Executive

Vice President and General Counsel of the Company, and Denny G. Kelly, former
President of Community Bank, allege that they were induced to retire based on
misrepresentations made by Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. who was allegedly acting
within the scope of his duties as an agent of the Company and Community Bank.
Plaintiffs claim that these actions constituted fraud, promissory
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fraud, fraudulent suppression, fraud in the inducement, deceit, fraudulent
deceit, negligence, recklessness, wantonness and breach of contract. The
complaints ask for an unspecified amount of compensatory and punitive damages.
Although management currently believes that this action will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or results of operations,
regardless of the outcome, the action could be costly, time consuming and a
diversion of management's attention.

INDEMNIFICATION AND ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS

The Company's Certificate of Incorporation provides that, in certain
circumstances, the Company will indemnify and advance expenses to its directors
and officers for judgments, settlements and legal expenses incurred as a result
of their service as directors and officers of the Company. Community Bank's
Bylaws contain a similar provision for indemnification of directors and officers
of Community Bank.

The Company and its subsidiaries are from time to time parties to other
legal proceedings arising from the ordinary course of business. Management
believes, after consultation with legal counsel, that no such proceedings, if
resulting in an outcome unfavorable to the Company, will, individually or in the
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aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition
or results of operations.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For additional information about compensation of the Company's
executive officers, please see the section below captioned "Executive
Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation."
SUMMARY OF CASH AND CERTAIN OTHER COMPENSATION

The following table provides summary information concerning
compensation paid by the Company and its subsidiaries during 2002 to the Chief
Executive Officer and each of the four other most highly compensated executive
officers of the Company at December 31, 2002 (collectively, the "named executive

officers") for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

ANNUAL COMPENSATION

OTHER
ANNUAL
SALARY BONUS COMPENSATION

NAME AND PRINCIPAL POSITION (1) YEAR ($) ($) ($)
Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. 2002 $ 917,000 —— ——
Chairman, President 2001 917,000 - -
and Chief Executive Officer ... 2000 1,017,000 —— -
Loy McGruder 2002 $ 273,782 - -
President - 2001 220,500 - —
Community Bank ................ 2000 245,000 —= —=
Hodge Patterson, III (3) 2002 $ 257,438 —— __
Executive Vice President - 2001 234,000 ——
Community Bank ................ 2000 260,000 —— 29,679 (4)
Stacey W. Mann 2002 $ 200,000 - 18,964 (4)
Executive Vice President 2001 185,852 —— ——
Community Bank ................ 2000 185,000 —= —=
Patrick M. Frawley 2002 $ 175,782 (5) - __
Senior Vice President 2001 — — __
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Community Bank ................ 2000 - - -
Bishop K . Walker, Jr. 2002 $ 29,658 —— 9,032 (6)
Vice Chairman and 2001 428,400 —— —— 10
General Counsel......uoeiuueen. 2000 476,000 —— -
Denny G. Kelly 2002 23,365 - —= 15
President - 2001 337,500 - —= 10
Community Bank................ 2000 375,00 - -

13
(1) The position shown is the position held during 2002. Mr. Walker and Mr.

Kelly retired from the Company and Community Bank as of January, 2002. In
January 2003 the Board of Directors terminated Kennon R. Patterson, Sr.'s
employment with the Company and Community Bank , and elected Patrick M.
Frawley as Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Community Bank. In February
2003, Loy McGruder took a medical leave of absence and retired in June,
2003. Stacey W. Mann was elected President of Community Bank during Mr.
McGruder's leave of absence. In April 2003, Hodge Patterson, III left
Community Bank to pursue other business interests.

Includes life insurance premiums paid by the Company and contributions by
the Company and to the ESOP during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, as
follows: Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., $21,363, $6,984 and $8,003; Bishop K.
Walker, Jr., $0, $10,761 and $11,780; Denny G. Kelly, $0, $8,784 and
$9,803; Loy McGruder, $13,163, $8,784 and $9,803 ; Hodge Patterson, III,
$13,163, $8,784 and $9,803; Stacey W. Mann, $13,163, $8,784 and $9,803; and
Patrick M. Frawley, $0, $0 and $0. ESOP contributions for 2002 are
estimated because the allocations for the 2002 plan year have not been
completed by the plan recordkeeper. This column also includes, in the case
of Mr. Walker, a $300,000 severance payment made in connection with his
retirement, and, in the case of Mr. Kelly, a $247,500 severance payment
made in connection with his retirement and $37,300 in fees for his service
during 2002 as a director of the Company and its subsidiaries following his
retirement.

Hodge Patterson is the brother of Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. and the uncle of
Kennon R. Patterson, Jr.

Includes for 2000 for Hodge Patterson and Stacey W. Mann, respectively,
$2,550 and $2,240 with respect to social club dues, $12,146 and $7,292 with
respect to usage of a Company-owned automobile, and $14,983 and $9,432 with
respect to discounted interest rates through participation in the Company's
employee loan programs.

Mr. Frawley's employment by Community Bank was subject to regulatory
approval which was obtained on May 30, 2002. Mr. Frawley was an independent
contractor from March 1, 2002 until June 10, 2002. The amount shown in the
table includes $56,875 paid to Mr. Frawley as an independent contractor and
$118,907 paid to him as a Community Bank employee.

Includes for 2002 for Bishop K. Walker, Jr. $8,959 with respect to usage of
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a Company-owned automobile, and $73 with respect to discounted interest
rates through participation, prior to his retirement, in the Company's
employee loan programs.

STOCK OPTIONS

The following table provides information concerning grants of stock
options by the Company to the named executive officers during 2002:
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OPTION GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR

Individual
Grants
Number of Percent of
securities total options
underlying granted to Exercise or
options granted employees in base price Expiration
Name (#) fiscal year ($/sh) Date
Kennon R. Patterson. Sr. 80,000 23.53% S 7.00 7/18/2007
Bishop K. Walker, Jr. 0 0% $ 7.00 7/18/2007
Denny G. Kelly 15,000 4.41% $ 7.00 7/18/2007
Hodge Patterson, III 12,500 3.68% $ 7.00 7/18/2007
Loy McGruder 25,000 7.35% $ 7.00 7/18/2007
Stacey W. Mann 12,500 3.68% S 7.00 7/18/2007
Patrick M. Frawley 0 0% $ 7.00 7/18/2007

OPTION EXERCISES AND HOLDINGS

The following table provides information concerning the
exercise of stock options during 2002 by the named executive officers and the
unexercised stock options held by them at December 31, 2002.

AGGREGATED OPTION/SAR EXERCISES IN LAST FISCAL YEAR AND FY-END OPTION/SAR VALUES

Number of Securities
Underlying Unexercised
Options/SARs at FY-End (#)
Shares
Acquired on Value
Name Exercise (#) Realized (9) Exercisable Unexercisable

$15

mone
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Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. 0 $ 0 160,000
Bishop K. Walker, Jr. 0 0 0
Denny Kelly 0 0 35,000
Hodge Patterson 0 0 15,000
Loy McGruder 0 0 41,667
Stacey W. Mann 0 0 27,500
Patrick M. Frawley 0 0 0
;1;__;;g;;;;;;s market value of underlying shares of Common Stock of $7.00 per

share at December 31, 2002, as determined by the Board of Directors, net of
the exercise price of the options.
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RETIREMENT PLAN

The following table shows the estimated annual benefits payable at
normal retirement age (age 65) under a qualified defined benefit retirement plan
(Community Bancshares, Inc. Revised Pension Plan) as well as under a
non-qualified supplemental retirement plan (Community Bancshares Inc. Benefit
Restoration Plan). This supplemental plan provides benefits that would otherwise
be denied participants because of Internal Revenue Code limitations on qualified
plan benefits. All of the named executive officers except Mr. Frawley are
participants in this supplemental plan.

PENSION PLAN TABLE

Years of Credited Service

Average Annual

Compensation 10 20 30 40
$ 25,000 $ 3,750 $ 7,500 $ 11,250 $ 15,000
50,000 7,500 15,000 22,500 30,000
75,000 11,250 22,500 33,750 45,000
100,000 15,000 30,000 45,000 60,000
250,000 37,500 75,000 112,500 150,000
500,000 75,000 150,000 225,000 300,000
750,000 112,500 225,000 337,500 450,000

1,000,000 150,000 300,000 450,000 600,000
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1,250,000 187,500 375,000 562,500 750,000

The benefits shown are not subject to any deduction for Social Security
benefits or other offset amounts. Benefits shown above are computed as a
straight-1life annuity beginning at age 65.

The amount of compensation covered by the combination of plans covering
the named executive officers is total compensation, including bonuses, overtime
or other forms of extraordinary compensation. The amount of the retirement
benefit is determined by the length of the retiree's credited service under the
plans and his average monthly earnings for the five highest compensated,
consecutive calendar years of the retiree's final ten consecutive calendar years
of employment with the Company and its subsidiaries. The full years of credited
service under the plans for the named executive officers as of December 31, 2002
are as follows: Kennon R. Patterson, Sr.: 19 years; Bishop K. Walker, Jr.: 15
years; Denny G. Kelly: 16 years; Hodge Patterson, III: 15 years; Loy McGruder:
15 years, Stacey W. Mann: 19 years and Patrick M. Frawley: 1 year.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

During 2002 non-employee directors of the Company were paid a fee of
$1,500 for each month during which the director served. Non-employee members of
the Company's Executive Committee, Nominating Committee, Executive Compensation
Committee and Audit Committee received a fee of $500 per meeting. Non-employee
directors of the Company who were also directors of Community Bank or its
subsidiaries received the following monthly fees: Community Bank - $500; 1lst
Community Credit Corporation - $250; and Community Insurance Corp. - $250.
Non-employee directors of Community Appraisals, Inc. received a quarterly fee of
$250. Non-employee members of Community Bank's committees received the following
fees: Audit Committee and Asset Quality Committee - $500 per quarter;
Compensation Committee and Personnel Grievance Committee - $500 per meeting;
Electronic Data Processing Committee - $100 per quarter; and Executive
Committee, Directors Credit Committee and Construction Oversight Committee -
$100 per meeting.

Effective April 1, 2003, non-employee directors of the Company are paid
a fee of $500 for each quarterly meeting. Non-employee members of the Company's
Executive Committee, Nominating Committee, Executive Compensation Committee and
Audit Committee receive a fee of $250 per meeting. Non-employee directors of the
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Company who are also directors of Community Bank receive a monthly fee of $1,500
plus $500 per meeting for each meeting in excess of one per month. Non-employee
directors of 1st Community Credit Corporation, Community Appraisal, Inc. and
Community Insurance Corp. receive a quarterly fee of $250. Non-employee members
of Community Bank's committees receive $250 per meeting.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS AND CHANGE IN CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

Effective April 1, 1996, the Company entered into an Employment
Agreement with Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., which was amended on October 14, 1999.
The Employment Agreement, as amended, provided that Mr. Patterson would serve as
the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and receive an annual cash compensation of at least $898,600, the
amount of Mr. Patterson's total cash compensation for 1999, with increases in
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his compensation as determined by the Board of Directors based on the
recommendation of the Company's Executive Compensation Committee. Mr.
Patterson's Employment Agreement also provided that he would receive four weeks
of paid vacation annually, use of an automobile for business and personal
purposes, reimbursement of reasonable business and professional expenses,
memberships in civic and social clubs, and an annual allowance of $10,000 for
the purchase of life insurance. In the event that Mr. Patterson was disabled to
the extent that he was incapable of performing his duties, he would have been
entitled to a continuation of his compensation during the period of disability,
but not to exceed one year. Mr. Patterson's employment with the Company and
Community Bank was terminated on January 27, 2003. Pursuant to the Employment
Agreement, Mr. Patterson may not engage in the business of banking within a 25
mile radius of any office of the Company or its subsidiaries for a period of two
years following the termination of his employment.

CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENTS

The Company entered into Change in Control Agreements with each of the
named executive officers except Mr. Frawley on December 4, 1999. These
agreements have terms of three years and are automatically renewed unless
terminated at the end of their terms by the Company's Executive Compensation
Committee. In the event of a change in control (as defined in the agreements) of
the Company, the named executive officer is entitled to receive certain
severance benefits if his employment is terminated by the Company within 30
months following the change in control, unless the termination is for cause or
by reason of the officer's death, disability or retirement on or after age 65.
The officer is also entitled to these severance benefits if the officer
terminates employment with the Company within 30 months following a change in
control because, among other reasons, the officer's authority, duties,
compensation or benefits have been reduced or the officer is forced to relocate
more than 50 miles from his place of employment immediately prior to the change
in control. If, during the term of the agreement, a transaction is proposed
which, if consummated, would constitute a change in control and, the officer's
employment is thereafter terminated by the Company other than for cause or by
reason of the officer's death, disability or retirement on or after age 65, and
the proposed transaction is consummated within one year following the officer's
termination of employment, the change in control will be deemed to have occurred
during the term of the agreement and the officer will be entitled to severance
benefits. The officer is also entitled to receive severance benefits if the
officer terminates employment for any reason during a 30-day period beginning 12
months after the occurrence of a change in control.

The severance benefits payable under the Change in Control Agreements
are as follows: (i) a lump sum payment equal to the present value of the
officer's monthly salary which would have been payable for 30 months following
the officer's termination of employment but for such termination; (ii) a lump
sum payment equal to the present value of a monthly payment payable for 30
months, which monthly payment is calculated by taking one-twelfth of the average
of the bonuses earned by the officer for the two calendar years immediately
preceding the year in which the officer's termination of employment occurs;

(1iii) continuation of the officer's health and life insurance benefits for 30
months following the officer's termination of employment at the same level and
on the same terms as provided to the officer immediately prior to his
termination of employment; (iv) full vesting and continued participation for a
period of 30 months following the officer's termination of employment in certain
retirement plans or, if such full vesting and continued participation is not
allowed, payment by the Company of a lump sum supplemental benefit in lieu of
full vesting and continued participation in such plans; and (v) individual
career counseling and outplacement services for a reasonable period of time
following the officer's termination of employment, up to a maximum cost to the
Company of $5,000 per officer.
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The Change in Control Agreements with Bishop K. Walker, Jr. and Denny
G. Kelly were terminated on January 9, 2002. The Change in Control Agreements
with Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., Hodge Patterson and Loy McGruder were terminated
on January 27, 2003, April 18, 2003 and June 6, 2003, respectively.

RETIREMENT/CONSULTING AND STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENTS

On January 9, 2002 the Company entered into agreements with Bishop K.
Walker, Jr. and Denny G. Kelly in connection with the retirement of Mr. Walker
and Mr. Kelly as executive officers of the Company and Community Bank. Pursuant
to these agreements Mr. Walker and Mr. Kelly are to receive payments from
Community Bank of $600,000 and $495,000, respectively, payable in two equal
installments in January, 2002 and January, 2003. In addition, Community Bank
agreed to transfer a bank-owned vehicle to each of Mr. Walker and Mr. Kelly. Mr.
Walker and Mr. Kelly each waived all claims against the Company, Community Bank
and their respective directors, officers and employees, and agreed to provide
consulting services during 2002 and 2003 as requested by management and the
Board of Directors on matters to include, but not be limited to, title insurance
and stock transfer, in the case of Mr. Walker, and shareholder relations,
customer relations and new customer development, in the case of Mr. Kelly. The
Company agreed to purchase approximately 270,000 shares of Common Stock from Mr.
Walker and approximately 77,000 shares of Common Stock from Mr. Kelly at a price
of $12.00 per share subject to any required regulatory approvals. Mr. Walker's
stock is to be purchased no later than January, 2004 and Mr. Kelly's stock is to
be purchased no later than January, 2005. The Change in Control Agreements
between the Company and each of Mr. Walker and Mr. Kelly were terminated. In the
event of a change in control of the Company prior to the consummation of the
stock purchase by the Company, Mr. Walker and Mr. Kelly each have the option to
decline to sell their stock to the Company and to receive the same consideration
being paid to other stockholders of the Company in connection with the change in
control.

Due to regulatory concerns, the Company did not make the payments due
under these contracts in January, 2003. By letter dated June 18, 2003, the FDIC
advised Community Bank that the January 2002 and 2003 payments were not
approved. In April 2003 at Mr. Walker's request the Company terminated its
obligations to purchase Mr. Walker's stock.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

The following directors currently serve as members of the Executive
Compensation Committee of the Company's Board of Directors and also served on
such committee during 2002:

Merritt M. Robbins (Chairman) Glynn Debter John J. Lewis, Jr.
Jimmie Trotter (Vice Chairman) Roy B. Jackson Kennon R. Patterson,

Kennon R. Patterson, Jr. is a former executive officer of Community
Bank and the son of Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., the Company's former Chief
Executive Officer.

Jr.
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In June 2000, Community Bank sold to, and leased back from, Debter
Properties, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company of which Glynn Debter is a
member, real property. The lease was assigned to Peoples Bank of North Alabama
in May 2002.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

OVERVIEW

The Company's Executive Compensation Committee (the "Compensation
Committee") is responsible for establishing and administering the Company's
executive compensation program. The Compensation Committee also makes
recommendations regarding executive compensation to the Board of Directors,
which has final approval of the compensation of each executive officer,
including the named executive officers identified in the Summary Compensation
Table above. The named executive officers do not participate in the Board of
Directors' review and determination of their compensation or in the Compensation
Committee's review and recommendation of their compensation.

The Company's executive compensation program is designed to attract,
reward, retain and motivate executive officers who will provide strong
leadership necessary for the Company to achieve superior financial
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performance and stockholder return, and who will be an integral part of the
communities that the Company serves. During 2002, the Company's executive
compensation program consisted only of base compensation and long-term
incentives. Executive officers also receive various perquisites comparable to
those made available to executive officers of other financial institutions, as
well as retirement and other employee benefits that are generally available to
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION PROGRAM
BASE COMPENSATION

Base compensation provides the foundation for the Company's executive
compensation. Its purpose is to compensate the executive for performing the
basic duties that he or she is expected to perform. Salaries are typically
reviewed and adjusted each year. During 2002 the base compensation paid to
Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. was subject to the terms of his employment agreement
with the Company. Mr. Patterson's employment agreement provided for a minimum
base salary, 1s subject to annual review in the discretion of the Board of
Directors based upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee

In determining the base compensation for a particular executive
officer, the Compensation Committee performs a subjective evaluation with three
primary factors in mind: (i) the officer's individual performance, (ii)
performance of the Company and business unit or units of the Company for which
the officer is responsible, and (iii) published compensation data for comparable
positions at other financial institutions. The Compensation Committee does not
assign any relative or specific weights to these factors, and individual members
of the Compensation Committee may give differing weights to different factors.
Accordingly, during a particular year, the base compensation of an executive
officer of the Company may not necessarily be related to the Company's
performance during that year or the prior year.
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Individual Performance. In determining its recommended compensation for
each executive officer of the Company, the Compensation Committee considers the
officer's individual performance during the prior year. Individual performance
is generally evaluated by reference to the executive officer's annual
performance review, in which the officer is subjectively graded by his or her
superiors on various specified criteria, such as leadership skill and management
ability.

Company Performance. The Compensation Committee also considers the
performance during the prior year of the Company and the bank, branch, branches
or other business unit or units of the Company for which the executive officer
is responsible. For example, in determining the compensation for the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and President of the Company, the Compensation Committee
reviews the performance of the entire Company, and in determining the
compensation for the President of Community Bank, the Compensation Committee
reviews the performance of Community Bank as a whole. The Compensation Committee
subjectively evaluates the performance by the business units with respect to
criteria that the Compensation Committee believes to be relevant in assessing
the units' performance. The Compensation Committee has not established any
target amounts for these criteria, which may differ from unit to unit, depending
on the nature of the unit's business (such as banking, consumer finance or
insurance) and how long the unit has been in operation, among other factors. The
Compensation Committee generally focuses on the following five criteria, to the
extent applicable, in assessing each unit's performance: (i) growth in loan
portfolio; (ii) growth in deposits; (iii) amount of employee turnover; (iv) net
profit; and (v) charge-offs and loan losses.

Published Compensation Data. The Company subscribes to several industry
publications that report compensation of the executive officers of other
financial institutions. The Compensation Committee reviews information regarding
the compensation of similarly-situated executives at comparable institutions in
determining its recommended compensation for a particular executive officer.

Based on these and other factors that the Compensation Committee and
its members may deem to be relevant, the Compensation Committee determines the
base compensation of each executive officer and makes its recommendations to the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors then considers the Compensation
Committee's recommendations, and may elect to decrease, increase or approve the
compensation recommended by the Compensation Committee. During 2002 the annual
base compensation for Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. remained at $917,000. The annual
base compensation of the following named officers was increased to reflect
additional duties or positions: Loy McGruder to $273,782; Hodge Patterson to
$257,438; and Stacey W. Mann to $200,000. Bishop K. Walker, Jr. and Denny G.
Kelly retired in January 2002 and Patrick M. Frawley was hired during 2002.
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ANNUAL BONUSES

The Company has, to a limited extent, provided short-term incentives to
executive officers in the form of annual cash bonuses in recognition of
outstanding individual performance and/or business unit performance. The Board
of Directors did not award bonuses to any executive officer of the Company for
2002, based on the Board's determination that the officers' base compensation
provided adequate compensation based on the Company's performance during 2002.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES

The purpose of long-term incentives is to provide incentives and
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rewards recognizing the performance of the Company over time and to motivate
long-term, strategic thinking among executives. During 2002, the Company granted
stock options to its directors and certain of its officers as long-term
incentives because, among other reasons, the Compensation Committee believes
stock options properly align executive pay with stockholders' interests. The
grant of stock options is a common method of incentive compensation for
financial institutions and other publicly held companies and allows the Company
to be competitive with other employers. The number of options granted to a
particular executive officer generally reflects the officer's position within
the Company, the Compensation Committee's subjective evaluation of the officer's
performance and contribution to the Company, and the Compensation Committee's
analysis of the value of the options awarded (using a standard methodology for
valuing options). During 2002, the Company granted options to Kennon R.
Patterson, Sr., Loy McGruder, Hodge Patterson, Stacey Mann, Denny Kelly and
certain other senior officers of the Company, with an exercise price equal to
100% of the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date that the options
were granted, as determined by the Board of Directors.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMPENSATION

Effective April 1, 1996, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, which was amended on October 14, 1999. Compensation for Mr. Patterson
during 2002 was determined in accordance with the terms of his employment
agreement and the Board of Directors' subjective evaluation of Mr. Patterson's
performance and that of the Company, as well as the other factors and criteria
described above for other executive officers of the Company. For 2002 Mr.
Patterson's annual base salary remained at $917,000, the amount of his 2001 base
salary. Mr. Patterson's cash compensation for 2001 had been reduced by 10% as
part of a program to decrease non-interest expenses at the Company.

Mr. Patterson's employment with the Company and Community Bank was
terminated on January 27, 2003.

By the Executive Compensation Committee:

Merritt M. Robbins (Chairman) Glynn Debter John J. Lewis, Jr.

Jimmie Trotter (Vice Chairman) Roy B. Jackson Kennon R. Patterson, Jr.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Set forth below is a graph comparing the yearly percentage change in
the cumulative total return of the Common Stock against the cumulative total
return of the NASDAQ Stock Market Bank Index and the American Stock Exchange
Major Market Index for the last five years. It assumes that the value of the
investment in the Common Stock and in each index was $100.00 and that all
dividends were reinvested. There is no established trading market for the Common
Stock and, therefore, no reliable information is available as to the prices at
which such Common Stock has traded. To the extent that cumulative total return
data provided in the graph below is based in part on the price of the Common
Stock at the dates indicated, such information should not be viewed as
indicative of the actual or market value of the Common Stock.
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(LINE GRAPH)

INDEX 12/31/97 12/31/98 12/31/99 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/02
Community Bancshares, Inc. 100.00 137.78 170.29 146.35 109.76 109.76
AMEX Major Markets 100.00 120.32 144.04 135.75 132.29 116.37
NASDAQ Bank Index* 100.00 99.36 95.51 108.95 117.97 120.61

Source: SNL Financial L.C.

The information provided under the headings "Audit Committee Report," "Executive
Compensation Committee Report on Executive Compensation" and "Performance Graph"
above shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material" or to be "filled" with the
SEC, or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C, other than as provided in Item 402 of
Regulation S-K, or to liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act and, unless
specific reference is made therein to such headings, shall not be incorporated
by reference into any filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange
Act.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain information, as of May 30, 2003,
with respect to ownership of shares of Common Stock by each of the Company's
directors, nominees, all directors, and executive officers of the Company as a
group, and each other person or group that is known by the Company, based solely
upon a review of filings made with the SEC, to be the beneficial owner of more
than 5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.

SHARES OF COMMON STOCK BENEFICIALLY OWNED (1)

PERSON, GROUP OR ENTITY SOLE POWER (2) SHARED POWER (3) AGGREGAT

I. DIRECTORS, NOMINEES AND
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Kenneth K. Campbell 46,767 900 47,66
Glynn Debter 25,400 (4) 21,611 47,01
Patrick M. Frawley 75,500 (5) 174,267 249,76
Roy B. Jackson 26,500 (6) 6,600 33,10
John J. Lewis, Jr. 68,390 (7) 175,467 243,85
Stacey W. Mann 46,980 (8) 4,155 51,13
Loy McGruder 46,367 (9) 32,084 78,45
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Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. 41,435(10) 552,442
Kennon R. Patterson, Jr. 31,699(11) 70,588
Merritt M. Robbins 198,427(12) 179,337
Jimmie Trotter 27,000 (13) 178,281

All Company directors,

nominees for directors and

executive officers as a group

(12 persons) 649,465 802,351
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II. OTHERS

U.S. Trust Company, N.A. as
Trustee of the Community
Bancshares, Inc. Employee
Stock Ownership Plan (14) —= 518,742 (15)

Doris S. Corr, Bryan A. Corr, Sr.

Tina M. Corr, Joan M. Currier,

John David Currier, Sr.,

Christy C. Chandler, John

David Currier, Jr. and Corr,

Inc., as a group, 600 Third

Avenue East, Oneonta,

AL 35121 (16) 181,278 200,071

* Less than 1%

(1) The number of shares reflected are shares which, under applicable SEC
regulations, are deemed to be beneficially owned, including shares as to which,
directly or indirectly, through any contract, arrangement, understanding,
relationship or otherwise, either voting power or investment power is held or
shared. In addition, in computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a
person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of Common Stock
subject to options held by that person which are currently exercisable, or which
will become exercisable within 60 days following June 9, 2003, are deemed to be
outstanding. Such shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purposes
of computing the percentage ownership of any other person. The total number of
shares beneficially owned is divided, where applicable, into two categories: (i)
shares as to which voting/investment power is held solely, and (ii) shares as to
which voting/investment power is shared.

(2) Unless otherwise specified in the following footnotes, if a beneficial owner
is shown as having sole power, the owner has sole voting as well as sole
investment power, and if a beneficial owner is shown as having shared power, the
owner has shared voting power as well as shared investment power. Some
individuals are shown as beneficial owners of shares held by the Company's ESOP.
The individual has sole power to direct the ESOP trustee as to the manner in
which shares allocated to the individual's account under the ESOP are to be

1,
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593,87

102, 28

377,76

205,28

451, 80

518,74

381, 34



Edgar Filing: COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/ - Form DEF 14A

voted. The individual has no direct power of disposition with respect to shares
allocated to the individual's account, except to request a distribution under
the terms of the ESOP. The ESOP recordkeeper has not completed the allocation as
of December 31, 2002, so the number of shares shown as allocated to an
individual's account are as of December 31, 2001.

(3) This column may include shares held in the name of, among others, a spouse,
minor children or certain other relatives sharing the same home as the director,
nominee, executive officer or 5% stockholder. In the cases of Messrs. Frawley,
Lewis, Robbins and Trotter this column includes 174,267 shares which are held by
the ESOP and which have not been allocated to any participant account. These
individuals serve as members of the Administrative Committee of the ESOP and
have investment authority over the unallocated shares, but each individual
disclaims any beneficial ownership with respect to such unallocated shares.

(4) Includes 25,500 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following June
9, 2003 pursuant to stock options

(5) Includes 75,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following June
9, 2003 pursuant to stock options.

(6) Includes 25,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following June
9, 2003 pursuant to stock options.

(7) Includes 25,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following June
9, 2003 pursuant to stock options.
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(8) Includes 22,500 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following June
9, 2003 pursuant to stock options and 15,334 shares allocated to Mr. Mann's ESOP
account as of December 31, 2001.

(9) Includes 35,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following June
9, 2003 pursuant to stock options and 11,367 shares allocated to Mr. McGruder's
ESOP account as of December 31, 2001.

(10) Includes 41,335 shares allocated to Mr. Kennon R. Patterson, Sr.'s ESOP
account as of December 31, 2001.

(11) Includes 25,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following
June 9, 2003 pursuant to stock options.

(12) Includes 25,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following
June 9, 2003 pursuant to stock options.

(13) Includes 25,000 shares which could be acquired within 60 days following
June 9, 2003 pursuant to stock options.

(14) The address of North Star Trust Company is 500 West Madison Street, Suite
3630, Chicago, Illinois 60661.

(15) Participants in the ESOP have the power to direct the ESOP trustee how to
vote shares allocated to their individual accounts. Any unallocated shares, and
any allocated shares with respect to which voting instructions are not received
from a participant, will be voted by the appropriate ESOP fiduciary in its
discretion.
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(16) Information about this group was obtained from a Schedule 13D, and
amendments thereto, filed by such group with the SEC.

PROPOSAL 2 - REMOVAL OF A DIRECTOR

The Company proposes to remove Kennon R. Patterson, Sr., a Class III
director whose term does not otherwise expire until the annual meeting of
stockholders in 2005. Pursuant to the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, a
director of the Company may be removed from office prior to the expiration of
his term only for cause and only by the affirmative vote of the holders of at
least 80% of the voting power of all the shares of the Company that are present,
in person or by proxy, at a meeting of the stockholders. Cause is defined in the
Certificate of Incorporation to mean "the director's willful dishonesty towards,
fraud upon, or deliberate injury or attempted injury" to the Company.

On January 21, 2003 Mr. Patterson, who at that time was Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Community Bank, requested that the Board of Directors of
Community Bank release a second mortgage on his property which was securing a
real estate loan to Mr. Patterson of approximately $5.1 million. The value of
the second mortgage was approximately $3.0 million based on financial statements
and appraisals provided by Mr. Patterson. The reason Community Bank obtained the
second mortgage in June 2002 was in response to regulatory concerns that the
$5.1 million loan to Mr. Patterson presented a greater [ ] than normal risk of
loss to Community Bank. The Board of Directors of Community Bank agreed to
release the mortgage only on the condition that the action not conflict with
certain regulatory requirements applicable to Community Bank and that it be
consistent with Community Bank's practice for similarly situated loans. On
January 22, 2003 Mr. Patterson caused two mortgage releases to be executed and
recorded which, due to an error in the legal description, purported to release
Community Bank's first and second mortgages. On January 23, 2003 at a regulatory
meeting in Atlanta, certain directors and officers attending the meeting learned
that Mr. Patterson had on January 20, 2003 filed for protection from creditors
under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code and had failed to inform
the directors of that action the next day when he requested a release of the
mortgage. On January 27, 2003 the Boards of Directors of the Company and
Community Bank terminated Mr. Patterson's employment. The directors have also
been informed that the condition they imposed on the release of the collateral
was not satisfied in that the collateral release was considered to be a
violation of regulatory requirements applicable to Community Bank. On February
6, 2003 the Board of Directors of the Company removed Mr. Patterson as a
director of Community Bank.

24

The Board of Directors of the Company conside Mr. Patterson's
concealment of his bankruptcy filing at the time he requested a release of
collateral on his substantial loan, his recording of the mortgage release
without satisfying the condition for the release imposed by the Board of
Directors causing Community Bank to be in violation of regulatory requirements,
and the attempted release of both mortgages, potentially leaving Community Bank
unsecured on a substantial loan, to constitute willful dishonesty towards, fraud
upon, or deliberate injury or attempted injury to the Company within the meaning
of the Certificate of Incorporation.

On May 20, 2003 the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC")
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instituted proceedings to determine whether Mr. Patterson should be (1) required
to make restitution of approximately $1.4 million to Community Bank for breach
of fiduciary duty as an officer and director of Community Bank, and (2)
prohibited from further participation in the conduct of the affairs of Community
Bank or any other FDIC-insured bank without prior regulatory approval. The FDIC
also notified Mr. Patterson of its intention to assess against him a civil money
penalty of $1.4 million. It is the Company's understanding that Mr. Patterson
will have an opportunity to contest these actions by the FDIC.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE
REMOVAL OF KENNON R. PATTERSON, SR. AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
SELECTION

The Board of Directors of the Company engaged the accounting firm of
Carr, Riggs & Ingram, L.L.C. ("CRI") as the independent accountant of the
Company for 2002 and 2003. A representative from CRI is expected to attend the
Annual Meeting, have an opportunity to make a statement and be available to
respond to appropriate questions.

The Board of Directors of the Company had previously engaged Dudley
Hopton-Jones, Sims & Freeman, PLLP (("Dudley Hopton-Jones") to serve as the
independent accountant of the Company for 2000 and 2001. On April 11, 2002,
Community Bank requested approval from the Alabama Banking Department (the
"Department") pursuant to the Alabama state banking statutes for Dudley
Hopton-Jones to serve as Community Bank's independent auditor for 2002. By
letter dated August 1, 2002, the Department declined the request and
prospectively disapproved Dudley Hopton-Jones as Community Bank's independent
auditor. The reasons for the disapproval given in the Department's letter were
unspecified "concerns about the conclusions reached" by Dudley Hopton-Jones in
connection with the 2001 audit of Community Bank and certain unspecified "issues
from past audits." On October 4, 2002, Dudley Hopton-Jones tendered its
resignation as the Company's independent auditor which was accepted by the Audit
Committee of the Company's Board of Directors. On October 4, 2002 the chairman
of the Audit Committee executed an engagement letter with CRI, and the Board of
Directors ratified the engagement the same day.

Neither of Dudley Hopton-Jones' reports on the Company's financial
statements for 2000 or 2001 contained an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of
opinion or was qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or
accounting principles. During fiscal years 2000, 2001 and through October 4,
2002 there were no disagreements between the Company and Dudley Hopton-Jones on
any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statements
disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.

AUDIT FEES

CRI billed the Company a total of $145,000 for professional services
rendered for the audit of the Company's financial statements as of December 31,
2002 and for the reviews of the financial statements included in the Company's
Third Quarter Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission during 2002. CRI estimates that it will bill the Company an
additional $145,000 in connection with the audit of the Company's financial
statements as of December 31, 2002.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS DESIGN AND IMPLEMENTATION FEES
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, there were no fees billed

by CRI for professional services rendered for information technology services
relating to financial information systems design and implementation.

30



Edgar Filing: COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/ - Form DEF 14A

25

ALL OTHER FEES

CRI provided no additional services than the services described above
under "Audit Fees" for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

VOTING PROCEDURES

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law ("DGCL") and the Company's
Bylaws, the presence in person or by proxy of a majority of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock is necessary to constitute a quorum of the stockholders
to take action at the Annual Meeting. For these purposes, shares which are
present or represented by a proxy at the Annual Meeting will be counted for
quorum purposes regardless of whether the holder of the shares or the proxy
abstains from voting on any particular matter or whether a broker with
discretionary authority fails to exercise its discretionary voting authority
with respect to any particular matter. Under the DGCL, once a quorum of the
stockholders is established, (i) the directors standing for election must be
elected by a plurality of the shares of Common Stock present, in person or by
proxy, at the Annual Meeting, and (ii) any other action to be taken must be
approved by the vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Common Stock
present, 1in person or by proxy, at the Annual Meeting, unless otherwise provided
in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws. Pursuant to the
Company's Certificate of Incorporation, the holders of at least 80% of the
voting power of all the shares of the Company that are present, in person or by
proxy, at a meeting of the stockholders must approve the removal of a director
of the Company. Abstentions will in effect count as votes against approval of
actions to be taken at the Annual Meeting other than election of directors.
Broker non-votes will not have an effect on the outcome of the election of
directors or approval of any other action the Company is aware is to be taken at
the Annual Meeting.

MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Any proposals by stockholders intended to be presented at the Company's
2004 annual meeting of stockholders, if to be included in the Company's proxy
materials for that annual meeting, must be received in written form at the
Company's executive offices on or before February 1, 2004, and must otherwise be
in compliance with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act and other applicable legal
requirements.

NOMINATIONS FOR DIRECTORS AND OTHER BUSINESS

The Company's Bylaws require stockholders to follow certain procedures
in order to submit nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors
or to propose other business to be acted upon at the Company's 2003 annual
meeting of stockholders. The Company's Nominating Committee will consider
nominations of persons for election to the Board of Directors that are timely
and otherwise submitted in accordance with the following. The persons named on
the enclosed proxy card will not vote to elect any person other than the persons
nominated on page 3 of this Proxy Statement, or if any such persons are
unavailable to serve or for good cause cannot serve, then the persons named on
the enclosed proxy card will vote for the election of such substitute as the
members of the Board of Directors may recommend. Instructions given on the
enclosed proxy card to the contrary will not be followed.
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In order to give timely notice for the Company's 2004 annual meeting, a
stockholder must give notice in writing of the nomination or other business to
the Corporate Secretary of the Company at its office at 68149 Highway 231 South,
P.O. Box 1000, Blountsville, Alabama 35031, not later than the close of business
on April 25, 2004, nor earlier than March 26, 2004. If the date of the annual
meeting is more than 30 days before or more than 60 days after July 24, 2004,
however, notice to be timely must be delivered not earlier than the close of
business on the 120th day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the
close of business on the later of the 90th day prior to the annual meeting or
the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such
meeting is first made by the Company. The stockholder must be a stockholder of
record at the time the notice is given and must be entitled to vote at such
meeting. The stockholder's notice must set forth (a) as to each nominee, all
information relating to that person that is required to be disclosed in
solicitations of proxies for election of directors in an election contest, or is
otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange
Act and Rule 14a-4 thereunder (including the nominee's written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if
elected), (b) as to any other business that the stockholder proposes to bring
before the annual meeting, a brief description of the business desired to be
brought
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before the annual meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the
annual meeting and any material interest in such business of such stockholder
and the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination or proposal is
made, and (c) as to the stockholder giving the notice and the beneficial owner,
if any, on whose behalf the nomination is made, the name and address of the
stockholder, as they appear on the Company's books, and of such beneficial
owner, and the number and class of shares of the Company owned of record and
beneficially by such stockholder and such beneficial owner.

The individuals named as proxies on the proxy card for the Company's
2004 annual meeting of stockholders will be entitled to exercise their
discretionary authority in voting proxies on any stockholder proposal that is
not included in the Company's proxy statement for the 2004 annual meeting of
stockholders, unless the Company receives notice of the matter(s) to be proposed
no later than April 25, 2004. Even if proper notice is received within such time
period, the individuals named as proxies on the proxy card for the meeting may
nevertheless exercise their discretionary authority with respect to such
matter (s) by advising stockholders of the proposal(s) and how the proxies intend
to exercise their discretion to vote on the matter(s), unless the stockholder
making the proposal(s) complies with Rule 14a-4(c) (2) under the Exchange Act.
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PROXY CARD
COMMUNITY BANCSHARES, INC.
PROXY FOR 2003 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The undersigned hereby appoints Gary L. Duke and Gerald N. Player, and

either of them, or such other persons as the Board of Directors of Community
Bancshares, Inc. (the "Company") may designate, as proxies, with full power of
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substitution and re-substitution, to vote all of the shares of Common Stock
which the undersigned is entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders
of the Company to be held atl0:00 a.m., Central Time, on Thursday, July 24,
2003, at the Main Club House at Limestone Springs, 3000 Colonial Drive, Oneonta,
Alabama, and at any adjournment thereof (the "Annual Meeting").

IN THEIR DISCRETION, THE PROXIES ARE AUTHORIZED TO VOTE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (i) FOR THE ELECTION OF A
PERSON TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IF ANY NOMINEE NAMED HEREIN BECOMES UNABLE TO
SERVE OR FOR GOOD CAUSE WILL NOT SERVE, AND (ii) UPON SUCH OTHER MATTERS AS MAY
PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE ANNUAL MEETING, INCLUDING MATTERS INCIDENT TO THE
CONDUCT OF THE ANNUAL MEETING.

THIS PROXY IS BEING SOLICITED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND WILL BE
VOTED AS SPECIFIED. IF NOT OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, THE ABOVE NAMED PROXIES WILL
VOTE (1) FOR THE ELECTION AS CLASS I DIRECTORS OF THE NOMINEES NAMED ON THIS
CARD, (2) FOR THE REMOVAL OF KENNON R. PATTERSON, SR. AS A CLASS III DIRECTOR OF
THE COMPANY, AND (3) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS ON ANY OTHER MATTERS THAT MAY PROPERLY COME BEFORE THE ANNUAL MEETING.

1. Election of Class I Directors Nominees: Roy B. Jackson, Stacey W. Mann and
the event any such person is unable
as are designated by the Company's

[ ] FOR all nominees listed (except as marked to the contrary below)
[ 1] WITHHOLD AUTHORITY to vote for all nominees listed
[ 1] INSTRUCTION: To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee,

write his name or their names in the following
space:

NOTICE: IF THIS PROXY IS EXECUTED IN SUCH MANNER AS NOT TO WITHHOLD AUTHORITY TO
VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF ANY NOMINEE, IT SHALL BE DEEMED TO GRANT SUCH
AUTHORITY.

2. Removal of a Director

[ 1] FOR removal of Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. as a Class III director of the
Company

[ 1] AGAINST removal of Kennon R. Patterson, Sr. as a Class III director of
the Company

Dated: , 2003 IMPORTANT: Please sign exactly
as your name Or names appear
Signature: on this proxy card and mail
promptly in the enclosed
Signature: envelope. If you sign as an
(1f held jointly) agent or in any other

capacity, please state the
capacity in which you sign.

M: black 2px solid; TEXT-ALIGN: center">

December 31,
2009

33



Edgar Filing: COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/ - Form DEF 14A

Change
Net change in cash from:

Operating activities

$
1,385,000
$
21,000
$
1,364,000
Investing activities
(251,000
)
$
(251,000
)
Financing activities
(950,000
)
(1,000
)
$
(949,000
)
Change in cash
$
184,000
$
20,000
Cash at end of Period
$
204,000
$
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We ended the year with cash of approximately $204,000 and working capital of approximately $83,000, compared to
cash of approximately $20,000 and working capital of approximately $22,000 at December 31, 2009. Cash generated
from operations was our primary source of operating liquidity and we believe that internally generated cash flows are
sufficient to support business operations. We utilize external capital sources, such as notes and other term debt, to
supplement our internally generated sources of liquidity, as necessary. We intend to maintain the appropriate debt
levels based upon cash flow expectations, the overall cost of capital, cash requirements for operations, and
discretionary spending, including for acquisitions. Due to the overall strength of our business, we believe that we will
have adequate access to capital markets; however, any future disruptions, uncertainty or volatility in those markets
may result in higher funding costs for us and adversely affect our ability to obtain funds.

Our increase in net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2009, was primarily a result of increases in depreciation of approximately $26,000,
inventory of approximately $163,000 and accrued interest — related parties of approximately $19,000, offset by
decreases in accounts receivable of approximately $96,000, deferred tax assets of approximately $162,000, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities of approximately $109,000 and a gain on debt settlement of approximately $123,000.

Our increase in net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2009, was primarily a result of approximately $151,000 paid in the Reverse Merger and
approximately $99,000 in the purchase of property and equipment.

Our increase in net cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the year
ended December 31, 2009, was primarily due to member distributions prior to the Reverse Merger of approximately
$1.4 million and the payment of debt of approximately $113,000, offset by the proceed of notes payable of
approximately $508,000.

Critical Accounting Policies

The information required by this section is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the
caption “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in “Part I — Item 1 — Financial Statements” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any unconsolidated special purpose entities and, we do not have exposure to any off-balance sheet
arrangements. The term “off-balance sheet arrangement” generally means any transaction, agreement or other
contractual arrangement to which an entity unconsolidated with us is a party, under which we have: (i) any obligation
arising under a guarantee contract, derivative instrument or variable interest; or (ii) a retained or contingent interest in
assets transferred to such entity or similar arrangement that serves as credit, liquidity or market risk support for such
assets.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and other documents that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission contain forward-looking
statements that are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and projections about our future performance,
our business, our beliefs and our management’s assumptions. Statements that are not historical facts are
forward-looking statements, including forward-looking information concerning pharmacy sales trends, prescription
margins, number and location of new store openings, outcomes of litigation, the level of capital expenditures, industry
trends, demographic trends, growth strategies, financial results, cost reduction initiatives, acquisition synergies,
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29 ¢

regulatory approvals, and competitive strengths. Words such as “expect,” “outlook,” “forecast,” “would,” “could,” “should,”
“project,” “intend,” “plan,” “continue,” “sustain”, “on track”, “believe,” “seek,” “estimate,” “anticipate,” “may,” “assume,” anc
such words and similar expressions are often used to identify such forward-looking statements, which are made

pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve risks, assumptions and uncertainties, including, but

not limited to, those described in Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other reports

that we file or furnish with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Should one or more of these risks or

uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from

those indicated or anticipated by such forward-looking statements. Accordingly, you are cautioned not to place undue

reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date they are made. Except to the extent

required by law, we undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements after the date they are

made, whether as a result of new information, future events, changes in assumptions or otherwise.

EEINT3 99 ¢ 29 ¢
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of:
Progressive Care, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Progressive Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash
flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Progressive Care, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Berman & Company, P.A.

Boca Raton, Florida
January 24, 2013

551 NW 77th Street Suite 201 * Boca Raton, FL 33487
Phone: (561) 864-4444 « Fax: (561) 892-3715
www.bermancpas.com ¢ info@bermancpas.com
Registered with the PCAOB * Member AICPA Center for Audit Quality
Member American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Member Florida Institute of Certified Public Accountants
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets

Current Assets

Cash

Accounts receivable - net
Inventory

Deferred tax asset

Total Current Assets

Property and equipment - net
Deferred tax asset
Total Assets
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable

Notes payable

Notes payable - related parties

Accrued interest payable - related parties
Total Current Liabilities

Stockholders' Equity

Common stock, par value $0.0001; 100,000,000 shares
authorized, 33,562,000 and 30,000,000 issued and outstanding
Additional paid in capital

Retained earnings (deficit)

Total Stockholders' Equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

See accompanying notes to financial statements

F-3

December 31,

2010
(As
Restated)

$204,336
406,587
272,468
2,545
885,936

77,133
158,988

$1,122,057

$137,163
7,017
567,067
73,329
18,866
803,442

3,356
(1,320,279)
1,635,538
318,615

$1,122,057

2009
(As

Restated)

$20,019
172,572
275,980

468,571

39,423

$507,994

$139,507

222,886
84,329

446,722

3,000
289,500

(231,228 )

61,272

$507,994
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Income from operations

Other income (expense)

Interest expense

Gain on debt settlement

Total other income (expense)

Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income tax benefit (expense)
Current income tax expense

Deferred income tax benefit

Total income tax benefit

Net income

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding

during the year - basic and diluted

See accompanying notes to financial statements

F-4

Years ended December 31,

2010
(As
Restated)
$5,884,855
2,923,265
2,961,590
1,286,977
1,674,613
(85,249
122,886
37,637
1,712,250
(7,017
161,533
154,516
$1,866,766

0.06

30,692,882

2009
(As
Restated)

$2,115,831

1,186,967

928,864
696,171

232,693

(4,852
(4,852

227,841

$227,841

0.01

30,000,000
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

(As Restated)
Common Stock Additional Retained Total
$0.0001 Par Value Paid-in Earnings  Stockholders'
Equity
Shares Amount Capital (Deficit) (Deficit)

Balance December 31, 2008 30,000,000 $3,000 $280,400 $(459,069 ) $ (175,669 )
Contributions - - 9,500 - 9,500
Distributions - - (400 ) - (400 )
Net income for the year ended December
31, 2009 - - - 227,841 227,841
Balance, December 31, 2009 30,000,000 3,000 289,500 (231,228 ) 61,272
Contributions - - 200 - 200
Distributions - - (1,343,850) - (1,343,850 )
Recapitalization 5,280,000 528 (266,301 ) - (265,773 )
Retirement of shares (1,718,000) (172 ) 172 - -
Net income for the year ended December
31,2010 - - - 1,866,766 1,866,766
Balance, December 31, 2010 33,562,000 $3,356 $(1,320,279) $1,635,538 $ 318,615

See accompanying notes to financial statements

F-5
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Gain on debt settlement

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Inventory

Deferred tax asset

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income tax payable

Accrued interest payable related parties
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Cash paid in acquisition of shares of Progressive prior to recapitalization
Net cash received in recapitalization

Purchase of property and equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Cash overdraft

Proceeds from notes payable

Repayment of note payable

Repayment of note payable - related parties
Member contributions prior to recapitalization
Members' distributions prior to recapitalization
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net increase in cash

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for taxes

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Years Ended December
31,

2010
(As
Restated)

$1,866,766

61,789
(122,886 )

(234,015 )
3,512
(161,533 )
(54,003 )
7,017
18,866
1,385,513

(151,453 )
106

(99,499 )
(250,846 )

507,800
(103,500 )
(11,000 )
200
(1,343,850)
(950,350 )

184,317
20,019
$204,336

$51,077
$-

2009
(As
Restated)

$227,841

36,061

(138,240 )
(159,864 )
55,352

21,150

(8,560 )

(1,671 )
9,500

(400 )
(1,131 )

20,019

$20,019

$-

$-
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Note 1 Nature of Operations, Recapitalization and Restatement
Organization

Progressive Training, Inc. (“Progressive Training”) was incorporated on October 31, 2006 in the State of Delaware.
Pharmco, LLC a Florida limited liability company (“PharmCo”) was incorporated on November 29, 2005.

On October 21, 2010, Progressive Training entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with PharmCo, and
Pharmco Acquisition Corp. (“Acquisition Sub”), pursuant to which Acquisition Sub was merged with and into
PharmCo, and PharmCo, as the surviving corporation, became the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Reverse
Merger”). As part of the Reverse Merger, Progressive Training was renamed Progressive Care Inc. (the “Company”).

Description of the Business

The Company is a retail pharmacy specializing in the sale of medications and related patient care management, the
sale and rental of durable medical equipment ("DME") and the supply of prescription medications and DME to
nursing homes and assisted living facilities.

Restatement

The Company is restating the following financial statements: (i) its audited financial statement for the year ended
December 31, 2010 filed in its annual report on Form 10-K with the SEC on April 15, 2011 as amended on May 23,
2011; (ii) its audited financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed in its annual report on Form
10-K with the SEC on April 16, 2012; (iii) its unaudited financial statement for the quarter ended March 31, 2011,
filed in a quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the SEC on May 23, 2011; (iv) its unaudited financial statement for the
quarter ended June 30, 2011, filed in a quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the SEC on August 22, 2011; (v) its
unaudited financial statement for the quarter ended September 30, 2011, filed in a quarterly report on Form 10-Q with
the SEC on November 14, 2011, (vi) its unaudited financial statement for the quarter ended March 31, 2012, filed in a
quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the SEC on May 21, 2012; (vii) its unaudited financial statement for the quarter
ended June 30, 2012, filed in a quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the SEC on August 20, 2012; and, (viii) its
unaudited financial statement for the quarter ended September 30, 2012, filed in a quarterly report on Form 10-Q with
the SEC on November 21, 2012.

The Company originally recorded the Reverse Merger between Progressive Training and PharmCo as an acquisition,
whereby Progressive Training acquired PharmCo. The financial statements are being restated to properly account for
the Reverse Merger as a reverse recapitalization, whereby for accounting purposes, PharmCo acquired Progressive
Training and therefore the financial statements set forth above are required to be restated.

Recapitalization

Immediately following the Reverse Merger, the shareholders of PharmCo owned a majority of the outstanding shares
of the Company, obtaining voting control. In addition, as part of the transaction, the previous owners of Progressive
Training retained the training video business; therefore, the transaction was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization.

The assets and liabilities and the historical operations that are reflected in the financial statements are those of
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PharmCo. The historical consolidated financial statements reflect the impact of the change in capital structure that
resulted from the recapitalization from the earliest period presented.

Basis of Presentation and Reclassification

The consolidated statement of operations included in the financial statements presented in the Company’s originally
filed 10-K were presented for the seven months ended December 31, 2010 and the year ended May 31, 2010, because

Progressive Training’s original year-end was May 31, and subsequent to the Reverse Merger the Company changed its
year end to December 31. For the year ended May 31, 2010, the financial statements included the historical

operations of Progressive Training and for the seven months ended December 31, 2010 (the transitional period), the

financial statements included the historical operations of Progressive Training and the current operations of PharmCo

for the period of October 21, 2010 through December 31, 2010.

In connection with the restatements, however, the financial statements herein are presented for the years ended

December 31, 2010 and 2009, and include the historical operations of PharmCo for the years then ended, and the
current operations of Progressive Care Inc. for only the period of October 21, 2010 through December 31, 2010.

F-7
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Certain December 31, 2009 amounts from the financial statements of PharmCo (as filed for the Reverse Merger in the
Company’s 8-K/A on January 6, 2011) have been reclassified to conform to the new fiscal year’s presentation.

The following tables present the impact of the restatements on the Company’s years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations and statements of cash flows:

Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(As Restated)
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
As As
Originally Originally As
Reported Adjustments As Restated Reported Adjustments Restated

Assets
Current Assets
Cash $ 204,336 $ - $ 204,336 $ - $ 20,019 G $ 20,019
Accounts
receivable - net 406,587 - 406,587 - 172,572 G 172,572
Inventory 272,468 - 272,468 - 275,980 G 275,980
Deferred tax
asset - 2,545 A 2,545 - - -
Current assets of
discontinued
operations - - - 13,577 (13,577 )G -
Total Current
Assets 883,391 2,545 885,936 13,577 454,994 468,571
Property and
equipment - net 77,133 - 77,133 - 39,423 G 39,423
Deferred tax
asset - 158,988 A 158,988 - - -

Intangibles - net 1,817,868 (1,817,868) B - - - -
Goodwill 1,348,402 (1,348,402) C - - - -
Total Assets $ 4,126,794 $ (3,004,737) $ 1,122,057 $ 13,577 $ 494,417 $ 507,994

Liabilities and
Stockholders'
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Equity

Current
Liabilities
Accounts payable
and accrued
liabilities

Income taxes
payable

Notes payable
Notes payable -
related parties
Accrued interest
payable - related
parties

Current liabilities
of discontinued
operations

Total Current
Liabilities

Stockholders'
Equity
Common stock,
par value
$0.0001;
100,000,000
shares
authorized,
33,562,000 and
30,000,000
issued and
outstanding
Additional paid
in capital
Retained
earnings (deficit)
Total
Stockholders'
Equity (Deficit)

Total Liabilities
and Stockholders'
Equity

2010 Adjustments
A - Recalculation of taxes including new net operating loss as a result of Reverse Merger; see Note 8
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$ 131,357

567,067

73,329

24,672

796,425

3,528
5,226,123

(1,899,282)

3,330,369

$ 4,126,794

$ 5,806 D
7,017 A
(5,806 ) D
7,017
a72 )E

(6,546,402) F

3,534,820 F

(3,011,754)

$ (3,004,737)

$ 137,163

7,017
567,067
73,329

18,866

803,442

3,356
(1,320,279)

1,635,538

318,615

$ 1,122,057

160,911

160,911

528
1,598,323

(1,746,185)

(147,334 )

$ 13,577

B - Removal of intangible assets in connection with Reverse Merger; see Note 1
C - Removal of goodwill in connection with Reverse Merger; see Note 1
D - Reclassification of related party accrued interest to non-related party

$ 139,507 G $ 139,507

222,886 G 222,886
84,329 G 84329
(160911 )G -
285,811 446,722
2,472 H 3,000
(1,308,823) 1 289,500
1,514,957 1 (231,228)
208,606 61,272

$ 494,417 $ 507,994
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E- Cancellation and retirement of 1,718,000 shares of Progressive owned by Pharmco prior to the Reverse Merger;
see Note 7

F - Change in additional paid in capital and retained earnings a result of change in acquirer/acquiree in connection
with Reverse Merger; see Note 1

2009 Adjustments

G - Change in assets and liabilities as a result of change in acquirer/acquiree in connection with Reverse Merger; see
Note 1

H- Issuance of stock to members of PharmCo in connection with Reverse Merger; this is a retroactive restatement of
these shares to the earliest period presented, see Note 7

I - Change in additional paid in capital and retained earnings a result of change in acquirer/acquiree in connection with
Reverse Merger; see Note 1

F-8
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(As Restated)
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
As
As Originally Originally
Reported Adjustments As Restated ~ Reported Adjustments As Restated
Sales - net $ 1,295,571 $ 4,589,284 A $ 5,884,855 $ - $ 2,115,831 B $ 2,115,831
Cost of sales 958,743 1,964,522 A 2,923,265 - 1,186,967 B 1,186,967
Gross profit 336,828 2,624,762 2,961,590 - 928,864 928,864
Selling, general
and
administrative
expenses 522,562 764,415 A 1,286,977 - 696,171 B 696,171
Income (loss)
from operations (185,734 ) 1,860,347 1,674,613 - 232,693 232,693
Other income
(expense)
Interest expense (16,032 ) (69,217 HA (85,249 ) - (4,852 )B (4,852 )
Gain of debt
settlement - 122,886 A 122,886 - - -
Total other
income (expense) (16,032 ) 53,669 37,637 - (4,852 ) (4,852 )
Income (loss)
before provision
for income taxes (201,767 ) 1,914,017 1,712,250 - 227,841 227,841
Provision for
income taxes
Current income
tax expense - (7,017 ) A (7,017 ) - - -
Deferred income
tax benefit - 161,533 A 161,533 - - -
Total income tax
benefit - 154,516 154,516 - - -
Income (loss)
from continuing
operations (201,767 ) 2,068,533 1,866,766 - 227,841 227,841
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Discontinued
operations
Loss from
discontinued
operations - net
of tax

Gain on
disposition of
subsidiary - net
of tax

Income (loss)
from
discontinued
operations - net
of income taxes

Net income (loss) $ (153,097 ) $ 2,019,863

Basic and diluted
income (loss) per
share:
Continuing
operations
Discontinued
operations

Net income (loss)

per share

Weighted
average number
of common
shares
outstanding
during the year -
basic and diluted

2010 Adjustments
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(12,862

61,532

48,670

$ (0.02
$ 0.00

$ (0.01

11,837,377

) 12,862

(61,532

(48,670

) $0.08

$ (0.00

) $0.07

18,855,505 A

)

)

)

$ 1,866,766

30,692,882

(79,204

(79,204

$ (79,204

$ -
$ (0.02

$ (0.02

5,280,000

)

)
)

)
)

79,204

79,204

$ 307,045

$ 0.01
$ 0.02

$ 0.02

24,720,000 B

A - Reflects change in included fiscal periods in connection with Reverse Merger; see Note 1

2009 Adjustments

B - Reflects change in included fiscal periods in connection with Reverse Merger; see Note 1

F-9

$ 227,841

$ 0.01

$ 0.01

30,000,000
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(As Restated)
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
As As

Originally Originally

Reported Adjustments As Restated  Reported ~ Adjustments As Restated
Cash Flows From
Operating
Activities:
Net income (loss) $ (201,767 ) $ 2,068,533 A § 1,866,766 § - $ 227,841 B $ 227,841

Net income (loss)

from discontinued

operations 48,670 (48,670 ) A - (79,204 ) 79,204 B -
Adjustments to

reconcile net

income to net cash

provided by (used

in) operating

activities:

Contributed

services - related

party 30,800 (30,800 ) A - - -
Depreciation 32,020 29,769 A 61,789 - 36,061 B 36,061
Amortization of

intangibles 47,308 47,308 ) A - - - -

Gain on disposition

of subsidiary -

discontinued

operations (61,532 ) 61,532 A - - - -

Gain on debt

settlement - (122,886 ) A (122,886 )
Discontinued

operations - - - 34,007 (34,007 ) B -
Changes in

operating assets

and liabilities:

Accounts

receivable - net (64,568 ) (169,447 ) A (234,015 ) - (138,240) B (138,240)
Inventory 427,029 423,517 ) A 3,512 - (159,864 ) B (159,864 )
Deferred tax asset - (161,533 ) A (161,533 ) - - -

Accounts payable
and accrued

liabilities 9,549 (63,552 ) A (54,003 ) - 55,352 B 55,352
Income taxes
payable 7,017 A 7,017 - - -

(20,192 ) 39,058 A 18,866 - - -
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Accrued interest -

related parties

Net Cash Provided

by (Used in)

Operating

Activities 247,317

Cash Flows From
Investing

Activities:

Cash paid in

acquisition of

shares of

Progressive prior to
recapitalization -
Cash acquired in
acquisition of

PharmCo less cash
disposed of in sale

of subsidiary 7,598
Net cash received

in recapitalization -
Purchase of

property and

equipment (51,209
Discontinued

operations 9,138
Net Cash Provided

by (Used in)

Investing Activities (34,473

Cash Flows From
Financing

Activities:

Cash overdraft -
Proceeds from

notes payable 10,000
Repayment of note
payable (3,509

Repayment of note

payable - related

parties (14,999
Member

contributions -
Members'

distributions -

Net Cash Used in

Financing

Activities (8,508

Net increase in cash 204,336

1,138,196
(151,453 ) A
(7,598 ) A
106 A
(48,290 ) A
(9,138 ) A
(216,373 )
497,800 A
(99,991 ) A
3,999 A
200 A

(1,343,850) A

(941,842 )

(20,019 )

1,385,513

(151,453 )

106

(99,499 )

(250,846 )

507,800

(103,500 )

(11,000 )
200

(1,343,850)

(950,350 )

184,317

(45,197 )

45,197

45,197

66,347 B

(45,197 ) B

(45,197 )

8,560 )B

(1,671 ) B

9,500 B

(400 ) B

1,131 )

20,019

21,150

(8,560

(1,671

9,500

(400

(1,131

20,019
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Cash at beginning
of year -

Cash at end of year $ 204,336

Supplemental

disclosures of cash

flow information:

Cash paid for

interest $ 20,228
Cash paid for taxes $ -

Non-cash investing

and financing

activities

Issuance of

Common Stock in

Pharmco

Acquisition $ 3,600,000

2010 Adjustments

20,019 20,019
$ - $ 204,336
$ 30,849 A $ 51,077
$ - A S -

$ (3,600,000) A $ -

$ -

$ 2,195
$ 800

$ -

(20,019 )
$ -
$ (2195 )B
$ (800 ) B
$ - B

A - Reflects change in included fiscal periods in connection with Reverse Merger; see Note 1

2009 Adjustments

B - Reflects change in included fiscal periods in connection with Reverse Merger; see Note 1
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Such estimates and assumptions impact both assets and liabilities, including but not limited to:
net realizable value of accounts receivable, estimated useful lives and potential impairment of property and
equipment, estimates of tax liabilities and estimates of the probability and potential magnitude of contingent liabilities.

Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the
estimate of the effect of a condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the financial
statements, which management considered in formulating its estimate could change in the near term due to one or
more future confirming events. Accordingly, actual results could differ significantly from estimates.

Cash

The Company minimizes credit risk associated with cash by periodically evaluating the credit quality of its primary
financial institution. The balance at times may exceed federally insured limits; however, at December 31, 2010 and
2009, the balance did not exceed the federally insured limit. The Company has no cash equivalents at December 31,
2010 and 2009.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company's operations are subject to risk and uncertainties including financial, operational, regulatory and other
risks including the potential risk of business failure.

Billing Concentrations

The Company’s primary receivables are from prescription medication and DME equipment billed to various insurance
providers. Ultimately, the insured is responsible for payment should the insurance company not reimburse the
Company. The Company generated reimbursements from significant insurance providers for the year ended December
31, 2010 and 2009 as shown below.

Insurance Provider 2010 2009
A 17 % -
B 14 % 26 %
C 10 % -
D 10 % -
E - 11 %
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F - 10 %

Inventory

Inventory is valued on a lower of first-in, first-out (FIFO) cost or market basis. Inventory primarily consist of
prescription medications, DME and retail items.

Property and Equipment

Company used property and equipment is stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

The Company provides DME on rent-to-own terms. Pursuant to Medicare guidelines (which are followed by private
insurance carriers as well) DME equipment is “rented” to the insured for 13 months, after which title to the equipment
transfers to the insured.
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. There were no impairment charges taken for years ended
December 31, 2010 or 2009.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

This guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. When determining the fair value
measurements for assets and liabilities required to be recorded at fair value, the Company considers the principal or
most advantageous market in which it would transact business and considers assumptions that marketplace
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, such as inherent risk, transfer restrictions, and risk of
nonperformance.

The guidance also establishes a fair value hierarchy for measurements of fair value as follows:
Level 1 — quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 -inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or
can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or

liabilities.

Level 3 — unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that
are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company's financial instruments consisted primarily of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, and notes payable. The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments generally approximate
their fair values at December 31, 2010 and 2009, due to the short term nature of these instruments.
Revenue Recognition
The Company records revenue when all of the following have occurred: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exists, (2) asset is transferred to the customer without further obligation, (3) the sales price to the customer is fixed or
determinable, and (4) collectability is reasonably assured.
For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company had 2 identifiable continuing revenue streams.

(i) Pharmacy
The Company recognizes its pharmacy revenue when a customer picks up or is delivered their prescription or

merchandise. Billings for most prescription orders are with third-party payers, including Medicare, Medicaid and
other insurance carriers. Customer returns are nominal.
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Total pharmacy revenues were approximately $5,769,000, representing approximately 98% of total revenues.
(i) Durable Medical Equipment

The Company recognizes DME revenue from the date the equipment is picked up or delivered to the customer.
Revenue from DME rentals is booked over a 13 month period. Customer returns are nominal.

Total DME revenues were approximately $116,000, representing approximately 2% of total revenues.

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company only had revenue from its Pharmacy operations.

Cost of Sales

Cost of pharmacy sales is derived based upon vendor purchases relating to prescriptions sold and point-of-sale
scanning information for non-prescription sales, and is adjusted based on periodic inventories. All other costs related
to sales are expensed as incurred.

Cost of DME sales is derived based upon vendor purchases relating to equipment sold and is adjusted based on

periodic inventories. All other costs related to sales are expensed as incurred.

F-12
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Vendor Concentrations

For the year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had significant vendor concentrations with vendors as
follows:

Vendor 2010 2009
A 38 % 36 %
B 36 % 11 %
C - 18 %
D - 13 %

Because there are an abundance of pharmaceutical wholesalers in the United States, management does not believe that
losing any vendor relationship will have an impact on the Company’s business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Primarily consists of store salaries, contract labor, occupancy costs, and expenses directly related to the store. Other
administrative costs include advertising, insurance and depreciation.

Advertising

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising for the Company for the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009 are charged to operations as incurred and are as follows:

2010 2009
$ 72,166 $ 33,000

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities, if any, are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. The
Company recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being
sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized; changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.

The Company does not believe it has any uncertain tax positions.

Earnings (Loss) per Share
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Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding the effects of any potentially
dilutive securities. In accordance with the guidance provided in ASC 805-40-45-4 and 805-40-45-5, the weighted
average number of shares prior to the Reverse Merger is computed from the earliest period presented (December 31,
2008) for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 on the basis of the weighted-average number of common
shares of PharmCo outstanding multiplied by the exchange ratio between Pharmco’s member interests and Progressive
Training’s shares established for the Reverse Merger (1 member interest equals 300,000 shares).

Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential of shares of common stock outstanding during the period including
warrants, using the treasury stock method (by using the average stock price for the period to determine the number of
shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock warrants), and convertible debt, using the if-converted
method. Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential of shares of common stock if their effect is anti-dilutive. For the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had no common stock equivalents; as a result, basic and
diluted earnings per share were the same.

In connection with the restatements all share amounts have been retroactively restated.
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued updated guidance to amend the
disclosure requirements related to recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements. This update requires new
disclosures on significant transfers of assets and liabilities between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
(including the reasons for these transfers) and the reasons for any transfers in or out of Level 3. This update also
requires a reconciliation of recurring Level 3 measurements about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a
gross basis. In addition to these new disclosure requirements, this update clarifies certain existing disclosure
requirements. For example, this update clarifies that reporting entities are required to provide fair value measurement
disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities rather than each major category of assets and liabilities. This update
also clarifies the requirement for entities to disclose information about both the valuation techniques and inputs used
in estimating Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. This update will become effective for the interim and
annual reporting period beginning January 1, 2010, except for the requirement to provide the Level 3 activity of
purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis, which will become effective for the interim and annual
reporting period beginning January 1, 2011. We will not be required to provide the amended disclosures for any
previous periods presented for comparative purposes. Other than requiring additional disclosures, adoption of this
update will not have a material effect on our financial statements.

In August 2010, the FASB issued an exposure draft on lease accounting that would require entities to recognize assets
and liabilities arising from lease contracts on the balance sheet. The proposed exposure draft states that lessees and
lessors should apply a “right-of-use model” in accounting for all leases. Under the proposed model, lessees would
recognize an asset for the right to use the leased asset, and a liability for the obligation to make rental payments over
the lease term. The lease term is defined as the longest possible term that is “more likely than not” to occur. The
accounting by a lessor would reflect its retained exposure to the risks or benefits of the underlying leased asset. A
lessor would recognize an asset representing its right to receive lease payments based on the expected term of the
lease. Comments on this exposure draft were due by December 15, 2010 and the final standard is expected to be
issued in the second quarter of 2011. The Company believes that the proposed standard, as currently drafted, will have
neither a material impact on its reported financial position and reported results of operations, nor a material impact on
the liquidity of the Company.

In August 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2010-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair
Value, or ASU 2010-05, which amends ASC 820 to provide clarification of a circumstance in which a quoted price in
an active market for an identical liability is not available. A reporting entity is required to measure fair value using one
or more of the following methods: 1) a valuation technique that uses a) the quoted price of the identical liability when
traded as an asset or b) quoted prices for similar liabilities (or similar liabilities when traded as assets) and/or 2) a
valuation technique that is consistent with the principles of ASC 820. ASU 2010-05 also clarifies that when estimating
the fair value of a liability, a reporting entity is not required to adjust to include inputs relating to the existence of
transfer restrictions on that liability. The adoption did not have a material impact on our financial statements.

In December 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
2010-29, Business Combinations (Topic 805) — Disclosure of Supplementary Pro Forma Information for Business
Combinations. This ASU requires a public entity to disclose pro forma information for business combinations that
occurred in the current reporting period. The disclosures include pro forma revenue and earnings of the combined
entity for the current reporting period as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during
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the year had been as of the beginning of the annual reporting period. If comparative financial statements are presented,
the pro forma revenue and earnings of the combined entity for the comparable prior reporting period should be
reported as though the acquisition date for all business combinations that occurred during the current year had been as
of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period. ASU 2010-29 affects any public entity as defined by
Topic 805 that enters into business combinations that are material on an individual or aggregate basis. ASU 2010-29 is
effective prospectively for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does
not expect the provisions of ASU 2010-29 to have an effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

Note 3 Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

2010 2009
Gross accounts receivable $ 425,956 181,576
Allowance (19,369 ) (9,004 )
Accounts receivable — net $ 406,587 172,572
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

The Company recorded an approximate 5% allowance for bad debt for estimated differences between expected and
actual payment of accounts receivables. These reductions are made based upon estimates that are determined by
historical experience, contractual terms, and current conditions. Each quarter, the Company reevaluates its estimates
to assess the adequacy of its allowance, adjusting the amounts as necessary.

Note 4 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

2010 2009 Estimated Useful Life

Leasehold improvements and fixtures $105,129 $105,129  Lesser of estimated useful life or life of lease
Furniture and equipment 12,469 12,469 5 years
Computer equipment and software 36,272 7,746 3 years
Vehicles 35,570 - 3-5 years
DME rental equipment 35,403 - 13 months

Total 224,843 125,344
Less: accumulated depreciation (147,710 ) (85,921 )
Property and equipment — net $77,133 $39,423
Note 5 Notes Payable
(A) Notes payable

On July 3, 2007, PharmCo entered into an agreement with one of its members to convert their outstanding
membership units into a note payable for $222,886. In connection with the conversion, this individual ceased to be a
related party. The note was non-interest bearing, unsecured and due on demand. On May 3, 2010, PharmCo settled the
outstanding note by paying $100,000. The balance of $122,886 was recorded as a gain on debt settlement.

The Company has an unsecured note, due June 30, 2011, with its former CEO of $62,767.

The Company received proceeds of $500,000 from the execution of unsecured notes, which bear interest at 8% and
mature one year from issuance (ranging from February 16, 2011 through October 22, 2011.) As a result, at December
31, 2010, all notes have been classified as short term. In connection with the issuance of these notes, $50,000 was paid
as a debt issuance cost, which was recorded as interest expense because the corresponding notes were due on demand.

The Company has a single vehicle lease at 4.9% interest, payable in 72 equal installments of $125 per month
beginning November 11, 2010. The original principal amount of the note is $7,800; at December 31, 2010, the
Company had repaid $3,500 leaving a remaining principle balance of $4,300 at December 31, 2010.

(B) Notes payable — related parties

On February 27, 2007, PharmCo executed a note for $11,000 with an affiliate of the Chief Executive Officer. The note

was non-interest bearing, unsecured and due on demand. The Company repaid the note in 2010.
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On October 15, 2007, PharmCo executed a note for $75,000 with an affiliate of a former member of PharmCo who is
now a control shareholder in the Company. The note bore interest at 8%, was unsecured and due on demand. In 2009,
PharmCo repaid $1,671; at December 31, 2010 the balance remaining was $73,329.
Note 6 Commitments and Contingencies
The Company leases approximately 3,300 square feet of space under a 10-year lease executed January 11, 2011.

Rent expense was $110,107 and $99,115 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Expected rent expenses for the fiscal years of 2011 through 2020 are approximately as follows:

Year Amount
2011 $ 82,522
2012 91,899
2013 95,651
2014 99,402
2015 103,152
Thereafter 598,548
$ 1,071,174
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Employment Agreements

On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Executive Officer,
Avraham A. Friedman. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Friedman agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer for a term of three years. As consideration for his services, Mr. Friedman is entitled to a base salary of
$300,000 per year. Mr. Friedman is also entitled to an annual bonus in accordance with the terms of his
agreement. He is also entitled to receive quarterly grants of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock in an
amount equal to $25,000. Such grants of common stock shall be valued based upon the closing bid price of the
Company’s common stock on the last trading day of each quarter.

On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Operating Officer, Andy
Subachan. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Subachan agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Operating Officer for a
term of three years. As consideration for his services, Mr. Subachan is entitled to a base salary of $240,000 per year.
Mr. Subachan is also entitled to an annual bonus in accordance with the terms of his agreement. He is also entitled to
receive quarterly grants of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock in an amount equal to $20,000. Such
grants of common stock shall be valued based upon the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock on the last
trading day of each quarter.

On December 1, 2010, the Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chief Financial Officer, Alan Jay
Weisberg. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Weisberg agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer for a
term of three years. As consideration for his services, Mr. Weisberg is entitled to a base salary of $48,000 per year. He
is also eligible to receive quarterly grants of restricted shares of the Company’s common stock in an amount equal to
$5,000. Such grants of common stock shall be valued based upon the closing bid price of the Company’s common
stock on the last trading day of each quarter.

Legal Matters

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, which arise in the
ordinary course of business. Litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other
matters that may arise from time to time may harm its business. The Company is currently neither a party to any suits
nor is it aware of any such legal proceedings or claims to be filed against it.

Note 7 Stockholders’ Equity

In May 2010, PharmCo purchased 1,718,000 shares of Progressive Training’s stock from the then CEO for $151,453.
On October 21, 2010 the Company issued 30,000,000 shares of its common stock to the members of PharmCo in
connection with the Reverse Merger. On the same day the Company cancelled and retired PharmCo’s 1,718,000 shares
in connection with the Reverse Merger.

Note 8 Income Taxes
Prior to the Reverse Merger, the Company’s tax year-end was May 31; subsequent to the Reverse Merger, the
Company elected a December 31 tax year-end. Consequently, the Company filed a short year tax return, which

included the net loss of Progressive Training for the seven months ended December 31, 2010 and net income for
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PharmCo for the period of October 21, 2010 through December 31, 2010.

All taxes for the period of January 1 through October 20, 2010 and the year ended December 31, 2009 were passed
through to the then members of Pharmco; therefore the Company was not subject to and did not record any federal
and state income taxes for this period.

Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the financial statements and consist of taxes
currently due. Deferred taxes relate to differences between the basis of assets and liabilities for financial and income
tax reporting which will be either taxable or deductible when the assets or liabilities are recovered or settled.

As a result of the change in control brought about by the Reverse Merger, the Company calculated a new net operating
loss (“NOL”) to be carried forward on subsequent tax returns. The Company’s originally determined that its NOL was
$633,600, calculated by multiplying the number of Company’s common shares outstanding (5,280,000) prior to the
Reverse Merger by the closing price of the Company’s common stock ($0.12) on the day prior to the Reverse Merger.
The Company also determined that its yearly useable portion of its NOL was $25,534, calculated by multiplying the
Company’s NOL by the then long term tax free interest rate (4.03%). However, under Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code (“IRC”) the Company can only use an NOL over a maximum of 20 years; therefore, the Company will
only be able to utilize, at maximum, $510,680 of its total NOL ($25,534 multiplied by 20 years).
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company used $25,534 of its NOL and had a remaining NOL carry
forward of approximately $485,000 available to offset future taxable income expiring through 2030. The Company
recorded a deferred tax asset of approximately $165,000, which is calculated by multiplying the available amount to
be used (approximately $485,000) by the maximum federal tax rate of 34%.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred income tax liabilities,
projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

The provision for income tax benefit (expense) consisted of the following:

December December
31,2010 31, 2009
Current:
Federal $ @400 )$ -
State (3,000 ) -
Total Current (7,000 ) -
Deferred:
Federal 162,000 -
State - -
Total Deferred 162,000 -
Income Tax Benefit - net $ 155,000 $ -

The Company’s tax expense differs from the “estimated” tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, (computed by applying the Federal Corporate tax rate of 21.95% to loss before taxes and 5.5%
for Florida State Corporate Taxes, the blended rate used was 26.24%), are approximately as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2010 2009
Federal tax expense (benefit) $ 355000 $ -
State tax expense (benefit) - net of federal tax effect 94,000 -
Permanent difference (432,000) -
Net operating loss carryforward utilized (7,000 ) -
Net operating loss carryforward - federal (165,000) -
Income Tax Benefit - net $ (155,000) $ -

The components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets are as follows:
December December

31,2010 31, 2009
Deferred tax assets:

66



F-17

Edgar Filing: COMMUNITY BANCSHARES INC /DE/ - Form DEF 14A

Net operating loss carryforward
Sales allowance
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment
Total deferred tax liabilities

Deferred Tax Asset - current portion — net

Deferred Tax Asset - long term portion

$

165,000 $
3,000
168,000

(6,000 )
(6,000 )
3,000 $

159,000 $
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Progressive Care Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(As Restated)

Note 9 Subsequent Events

In January, 2011 the Company repaid $20,000 of its $500,000 in demand notes. In March of 2011, the Company
offered holders of the remaining $480,000 notes the ability to convert their note(s) into shares of the Company’s
common stock. An aggregate of $410,000 of these Notes plus interest were converted into 1,098,973 shares of the
Company’s common stock and $45,000 of these notes were repaid. $25,000 of these notes remains as debt of the
Company.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has adopted and maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that information required to be disclosed in the reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), such as this Form 10-K/A, is collected, recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. As required under Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange
Act, the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, has conducted
an evaluation of the effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based upon its current evaluation, the Company has concluded that the Company’s current disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports
that the Company files or submits under the Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated
to the Company’s management, including the Company’s CEO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15 of the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is
designed to provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. Management conducted an assessment of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework and criteria established by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control — Integrated Framework. Based on the
assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2010, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting was not effective based on those criteria.

The Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, does not expect
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures and its internal control processes will prevent all error and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,

assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the

fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because

of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all

control issues and instances of error or fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent

limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that the breakdowns can occur

because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some

persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control. The design of any system of

controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no

assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time,

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due

to error or fraud may occur and may not be detected. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the

financial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not

eliminate, this risk.

Changes in Internal Control
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There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)
of the Exchange Act) that occurred during the period ended December 31, 2010 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s
registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, which permanently
exempt smaller reporting companies.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 10-K

(a)(1) The following financial statements are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K/A for the period
ended December 31, 2010.

1.  Independent Auditor’s Report

2. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

3. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

4.  Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009

5.  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

6. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) All financial statement schedules have been omitted as the required information is either inapplicable or
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or related notes.

@@3) The following exhibits are either filed as part of this report or are incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit Description

No.

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, dated October 31, 2006 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Form 10SB12G filed on June 13, 2007)

32 By-Laws (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2to the Company’s Form 10SB12G filed on June
13, 2007)

33 Certificate of Ownership and Merger dated November 24, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2010)

10.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated October 21, 2010 by and among Progressive
Training, Inc., Pharmco Corp. and Pharmco Acquisition Corp. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 27, 2010)

10.2 Employment Agreement of Avraham A. Friedman dated December 1, 2010 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2010)

10.3 Employment Agreement of Andy Subachan dated December 1, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2010)

10.4 Employment Agreement of Alan Jay Weisberg dated December 1, 2010 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2010)

10.5 Consulting Agreement of Spark Financial Consulting, Inc. dated December 1, 2010 (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 29, 2010)

31.1 Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

32.1 Section 906 Certification of Principal Executive Officer*

322 Section 906 Certification of Principal Financial Officer*

*Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned.

PROGRESSIVE CARE INC.
By: /s/ Alan Jay Weisberg
Alan Jay Weisberg

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: January 25, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: January 25, 2013

Date: January 25, 2013

Date: January 25, 2013

Date: January 25, 2013

By:/s/ Alan Jay Weisberg
Alan Jay Weisberg
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By:/s/ Alan Jay Weisberg
Alan Jay Weisberg
Chief Financial Officer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer)

By:/s/ Avraham Friedman
Avraham Friedman
Chairman

By:/s/ Shital Parikh
Shital Parikh
Chief Operating Officer and Director
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